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1§ OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last § years

frorm £390m in 2020 o
£712m n 2022

Energy generation

Qur renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable energy sites’
carben saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of ioans
Over the year we
provided financing to, ¢on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy siles spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

~

Our Group was 1n a soild position corung ot of

the tockdowr resoonse to Covid-13. and our
busness has contnu COUSLY

B8 LEEN SOME

trougho:
unforecast

the year T
ed gmwtn novaiu certain awis.ons

primariy drven by the ncrease ir enérgy prices

Tradrg bmeed Une “her

a'”/ ortes

s supsid-ar 8 e Grou targets consistent

A for snare~oldears over ‘m, long term, with &
on steady and credictabe growth, thsls

ularty irmportant gunes maore challeng rg

ecoromic conditions We have a diversified and

matdre business befttng a Group w.tn more har

12 years of rading hisiory and amoition.
comprizes more then 300 comrpanies trat Fave
operated in a "ange o7 SECIOrs Over Mmary years
generating sieady lor g-t

ra

sharehciders We ope

f 'l

11 rOwW Y fOr Dur
ate i essential s
wadly through market

ctors that
We expesi to percrm s
volatlity.

From 15 seclure base we nave beer able ¢ add
L axpansion ard civersiication na

sured way throdgn seeking cut opporiunities n

adjacert sactors. These sectors provide us
witi1 2 platfornm to contirue o expand . line with
Our exis roUp COMmpTises

tng strategy Today, our G
ending, healthcare infrastructure,
se buidrg divizions We

u “ave grow”
significant oresence within our moss

G be a

estatzishes sectors, prodaong 4.2% of the UK's
olar energy anz 1.7% oV the LK's anshore wind

energ cutpul, and bulding a £361rm short ard

rredium terra erd ng Cusiress fhat fac litates the

ST LCHCT GNG TR rDYe

throughout tre UK.

ncresse N Ne vale of our e "ah.\f Jivision was
supnortes by scud operational parformance across

5 ang SoTMe Srgaritc grovwith 1n naewer

A reflection on our year
Cur Gu sz aised £404m From invest

delveres consistent reverues whie growing ca

deproyment, resultng in 27120 ravenye

generated across the Groun (2021 £425m;) ard net

assets of £2.219m (2021 £1 888 restated}.

Trie frnancial staterr
operating orofit before tax of £43r against Our

expected oucore of a srnall accountirg praft T
rooust cerforrance
produced by the groun
dunng the year. Armost 60% of our opusiness

cornprises renewable

Deng scld

engrgy generating assets such
asz solar ensrgy sites and wond farrs, which provide

long-term revenue strearms Tnese are mennonally

diversified across a range of echnologies 10 mitigate
AQaTst poor performarce i a specific sector and
CONHIDLTE IOWarcs s edﬂ/, orec i@ share f"h

arowth, however, their values can stll be rmpasted
by changes m oricing ard demand. We rave seen
consecdtive and matersl ncreases in long term
enarmy prics forecasts and e

globaliy over the last

erqy for"-.r-aarc rates

[he glabal

&)
"

2 result
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Chief Executive's review

rarkets and starting corstruction on & large wind
farm in Australia At tne start of the year we adgded
rine additional sites
which brings us up tc 26 sites in tota! lcompared o
ten sites for mest of 2021) These sites nave
pericrmed akead of expectations, generarg
EBITDA of £26mm |

Our reserve powers divison

202° £l dur ng the year

O successiul and on oatablshed Luormass

division connndes o pererm wel ang has
delvered stable returns s'nce acnu siion in 2015,
Thig year, | have been particuarly pleased (o see
strarg perforrnance at our rewest biomass site n
Snettertor, East Ang
2021, proving to be a valuable addit on to ne

o a Waste

a, whicn was acquirac in Aprl

Dunng the year we purchased

EO*EWE‘ gy facihty currenty under construction in
Ayrshire. The facility has beer in development for
thres years and will be capable of processing over
185 600 tonnes per anram of ﬂCﬂ—fecyclab e

rousenod, commercal and industrial waste which
would ctherwise be sent io landill or exporied
This wiill generate 17 MWe of low cargor eleciricity,
enough to power 30,000 homes [T will be the first
large-scale, subsidy free waste-to-erergy oroject in
western Scoidland and projected cornpletion date s
in eary 2024

Over recent years, many of our energy assats have
neen under construchion winich nas contributed to
es. This iz

ohaze

our prev'ously reparted
typical of such businesses dunng growt

accouning loss

even when cash genaratve, because finarce costs
such as depreciation,
divisicnr. has now reached

and ac
exceeded revenues. This
oLr target size and secior sput

counting cnarges,

Accord' ngly this yvear | am pleasad to report an
accounting profit before tax of E48m against our
nudgetea small acc
laraer than expected oro
the portfolic and higher

Increased revenue from our energy division as weil

ounting proht. This sughtly
fric due to the maturity of
energy prices, resultmg in

as an increase in inflation |

= explained below)

Doy property lend:ng husiness makes ug arcund
27% of tne Group and cornorizes short and medium
term secured loans to expearienced property
nlished part of our busiress
o.tovvwrﬂg Z short penod

crofessionals Tnis esta
ontinued o perform well, f

of slow down during Cowd-1
nrentionaily chose to wrte fewer loans

S whern we
JI’ HVPTJ“‘C‘

nan book was 1872 'oans s year 1o UK borrowers

Our lend’ng divsion has always operated at
conservative loan to value evels (below 70%)

order tnat it maintains access to valuaole securty if
there 15 a reductior in property valugs, This strateqy
nas served the Groun wel since inception 12 years
aqo, and it kas operated trrough periods of change

severdl times, The Group s fak ng a naturally
aubious aoproach when assessing new .endimng
oepportunities in Lght of the changing ec

8] alalagiie:
oJtook. To date, tne G

Group has lert £7.20n of
sroperty loans since inception in 2010, suifering
only Z6man capitat losses This strong track record
5 the result of cur careful approach in this sector,
comprising disoplined due d;llge"ce conservative
an-to-value ratios and an ability and wilingness t
reduce activty 1 thes sector during tmes of
ecoromic unceriamty, We will contrue o adopt

this approach throughout the coming year

The healthcare drasion maxes up around 4% of the
Group and s broadly gerforming well Our
Rangeford Boldings
Limited "Rargeford”) continued to sell apartments
at tnree sites, commenced constructon of a fourth
village in Cherisey, and acqguired a fifth location
rear Cambridge dunng the year Sales at the
Chertsey site are expected (o commence :in 2022,

retiremert viliages busness,

whiie construcion at the Cambridge site iz
expected to start in 2023 with the first sales
cormmencing in 2026

ol'shed in 2019 and
rermains ar area cf growtr for the Group, now
of six operatirg businesses, Our

s, durassic Flbore, Swsh Fibre,

Qur fore division was esta

COmprsng
resicential businesse




Chief Executive's review

canet and Alpoinis Fibre are builcing uitrafast

20

are o e premises’ broacdkand networks ir

I
@
¢
>
w
I
4
-
5
©

e i which have been overlocked by
s Giganer pfov:deg Connectvity (o

2 UK usimg CityFiore

nfrastructure ard Vitnd s @ software

develeprnent company which haz developed

and Doonreach

proprietary softwae to aiow Irerne: Service
cGiesale erabled
retworks, inciud.rg Allcoints Fisre Vorboss 15 the
uis ory dedica

on prov-ding cor

Providers to sell connecivity aver w

r5e fore Network (¢ foucus

mecivily 1o Gusnesses

awed entern

es1derts
o invest captai n expamcén‘

networ<s rthe

Im tne yearn our

continued

¢

customers to b
revanues for

newworks are ab
hgher broadbard spaeds reguir
rrare working-from-n

ed at a resul

M

ome ard increased wsage Hf
video-om-dermand services, In Londen, Vorbass has
220 continued to bulid and as instaled ovar
SGORm of tore with a commitment (o offer 20GEps
bre to up o 15.000

by 2027,

busineszes 'n Central London

Welst our fibre divisior rermains in @ growth phase
for the next 3-5 years we do not exsect 11T report

an accc:,mtiﬂ’

Towsards the erd of the yesr, we added a new
property deveoper 1ot
of Elvia

e Grﬁ D, vt the acguestion

€85 Eovigis an

Horq’v "Etwia

WE Dar TS grow LIn & measured way

tre et five years wilT ar Ui

rdate Fomres. Euvig nEs rong exsl
i c

are ke/ O orLrnng INe GusIress.

Inflation and Interest rates
The higner rate of nfiahion experienced this year

has bean resporsiole for some of the
utperformance against expectauons n the
Cov'rwpa 5 share price HM Treasury forecast thaet

ragn irflation is Lkely to be prese~t unti 2025, a3 a

TESLLL WE eXpect 1o recewve mora revenue for the

enargy geng

rated wihin odr energy dvizon. and a
highar value from tne government subsidies trat
same of Sur enegy sites tenefit from, increasing
tre value of tnose sites. Howeaver, a shoert penod of
high ~flation sueh as forecast has very littie effect

on the rate ai which the Group is excected 1o grow
Thig s tle”duse ire renewab.e energy stes we owr

dere thelr value from discounted orojected fulure

'l

castflows ovar the tme they are expected o
operate for, typ'taly 20 years or reore. if the
outiook far iong-term inflation were 10 increase, the
Irpact On our share proe should be positive
because it would rorease tne revenua sach of cur

expe:t to make, in conurast 1o 2

Trie expecied rize in 1nteres: rates s forecast o
retor to normaafter a sianficant period of very
The irmediate impact of this on cur
husiress iz expected to be troadly neutral since

low rates

our Group s nentenaly struttured 5o as not io
expernence signcant value erss'on when nteres:

rates change We continue to aks a cautious

ness wherg the

agoroach withim aur lendirg bug
=

rest rgtes gre felt more ¢
o}

Ly o e th
we write, or alter th K pr ﬁ\c of our lpars

rrrougn reducrg man © vatue

ratos Gr pausing
ctivity in certan parts of the raket smowid thar

. Appropnae
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and outlook
Since the year end
oerform sieadly from an operationat perspective

. the Croup has contnued o

and rlrne with our expectaton: albet we have
seer share pric

cortinued increase in lo

e growth: areac of target due 1o the
g term enargy grice

forecasts. Our growth targets for the Group oveé
the medium and .ong

we conbrnue 1o forus on manianing a dwversihed

terrm rem.ain uﬂcha'"g&% nad

s that is capable of delvering rmore
QI’E‘OEC tatble growth for shareholders.

The recently announced clectric iy Generator Levy
"LGLU within the 2023 Finarce Bill, will have an
impac: on the returns generated from our energy
portcuc over the next 5 years. This is furthar

dizcussed n the group firance review or page 27

Cur prozerty ending business centnues 1o
i~ this
sector since the year end We focus on short term

perfarm strongly, with increased deptoyment

loans (our average carrent Ioan term s 17 months)
which enables us to adapt to charges in sutlock
swiftly, we feel this is particularly impartant in the
current economic climate

Performance ir our bealthcare dvision cortinues
te e stable, and we continue to reman positive
aboJt the opporturities 1c imrprove perdormance in

this sector

o

Since year end, we have continwed to buld out our
fibre netwarks, with construction rackmg n nea
with cur expectations We continue o review
ogporiunites for both wrganc and inorgan-c
srowth sugportng our exsting managenent fearms

in delivaring this strategy

ir Cecember 2022 we have acauired the rights to
£25m of nght to use mobile licenses from Trree
UK, thus making the Frst step tow

network operator.

args becoming an

moolle viriua

Cur rmix of busin
and may evolve furthier over the years ahead, driven

esz areas Nas devewopsed over time

by the overarching imgortance we place on
neeting the cbjectives of our share~ciders. This
shomd not be read as any ndication of a whotesale
change in tme sectors 'nowhicn we operale, but as a
reflection of the ole playved by the strategic

mardate in protecting sharehclders interests,

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.

¥




Qur business at a glance
What we do

Fern Tracing Limited {"Fern’} i
of nearty 320 subsidiarie

the narent comoany

s {togeter the "Grougt O
Sroup operates across five key areas: energy,
heaithcare, lending, hbre and house ouwlding. Over
e past tweive years we have bult a carefully
diversited groun of operati-2 husinesses tha-_ are
well posiioned ta delver long-term value ang

for our sharenolders

. Energy division
We generate power from sustainable scurces and

yy

ell the energy orodiuced either directy to naustial

consumers or o large rnetworks Many of our
renewable 2nergy tes quahiy for government

\ Anves, wiich represen: an additioratl source of

33

W,
e
come We have alsc ubinsed our experise in

renawabe energy to constract faciities for sale o

A

vear end the Group had
Lo
2. Healthcare division

We provide homes and leisare facilit €s t© aur
agemq nooulation, and brivate rospitals which

ovide righ-guat iy heaitne SEFVICES arross
g ¥

op&rat:onal sites i the UK

Solar, wind,
bhiomass,
landfill gas.
FESErve power

Property lending,
development
financing

Retirerment
villages, private
hospitats

3. Lending division

Wwe lend on a shaort and medium arm, securea
basis (0 a large nurecer of property profess.onals
enable othar husines

We zlso grovide fnancng o

Pt owild assets ard other residential andg

C

i commercial properties,

4. Fibre division
oWe own and operate fibre broadband networks

across vancus areas of the UK We buld tre
networks and conrect ther o Momeas and
hlsiressas fo provide Gl CUsSTomers with witrafast
filyre broacband.

i 5. Home building division

I Duning the year we saccessililly

buitd ng secien acoadireg Elvia -

; saong track record of developing hornes in a
{osustarase manner The “"’rrﬁaﬂ, S o full-service
R o=

Powor<rranship.

Ultrafast fibre
broadband across
the UK

Residential house
building
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Our business at a glance

The srength of cur Group's strategy 15 e Dothts I obusinesses with comprenenswve business plans and

perauonal aiversity and me return profie of these 1 strong management teams This ensbles us to
continue to diversify our tusiness without
cormpromising on the quality of our operations.

erergy, healtncare, finre and hame ballding Over the past three years, we have successfully

divis-ons offer visizil oy and stabilizy of returns over ertered the fibre broacband sector and we now

the icriger term OwWn Six cCompanies with exciting plans to deliver

. ‘ . - Lltrafast hroadband across the UK
e scale of cur Dusiness 17 0 '@y strengt™, e abing

Lz to acquire large-scale establisned operations as

well as the opporiunily o enter new seCtors with

mirirnal risk 1o the whole Group by selecting

Sector split' o Healncare 1%

Wind 22% —

- Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

P — Resenve power 2%
~-Solar 1%

- Fibre 5%
Solar 20% 7

- riealthicare 4%

Reserve power 6% - | - Landhl gas and biornass 9%
Other 3%

B M Owning and operating assets 69%
M E lLending 31%

Sector splisis given by value, as represerted on the compary ba.ance sheet of Fern Tradng Lirnited
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate
We are proud that tne DUSINESes

withn our Group meke a positive

contribution o society, from
generating ciean erargy to the
creation of nomes and trie provision

of tuality healthcare nfrastructure

Solar sites
“andhii gas facilues

Biormzss oower stafions

Rreserye power planis

Retremert vilages

®
4
)f‘ Wwind farrms
kd
s 1)
[H)
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Our business at a glance

HMaking a ditference
tmaxes a
positive contrbution to society across the UK,

generaung rerewanle energy, provicing auality
heaithcare infrastructure and retirerment livir

We ara proud to operate a GroLp tha

ng ana

delvering hegh-soeed broadzand 1o ung

derserved

areas of tne country

Energy
We currentiy own 220 energy sites praducing
37/5GW ayear. Thars
a milson

gy Lo power over
homes

Cur combination
reserve power, ciomass ard landfl gas

rwell, hetping the U< to

2 of the weather

complement each otg
meet its erergy tagets irrespec

The Fern Commurity Fund 1s a socal enterprice run
oy tne Grou, which works to dstribute comriunity
funds generated from aur wird farms. This year, the
Fern Comrmurniry Fund has awarded £1

community greups, supporied 13 local uriversity

Am o local

students tnrough our Student Scholarshep Fund,
and prowiced a wirter fuel subsidy to 706 residents

who ae local o the Group's assets

Healthcare

Qur retirement villages proviae hgh: quality,
es, with 379
currently in place, and

cntempcrary lving spac
accommodation units
schemes in various stages of development offering

over 5C0 additiona! accommadation units.

A friendly commurnity is at the heart of our
retrerrert villages, which s why in our
develcpments we provide centrat facil ues ana &

Fub of social activity for our residants

Lending
“he loans we rrade dunrg the year have helped
furd the constructcn of stuaent accormmaodaton

and much needed rezidential properties

We conunue to extend woaris 1o 24 taxi drivers and

fleets to enable them (o usz electnic vebkicles,

redcing carbon emissions In Gur Cagitsl

Fibre

Through our fibre civis.on we are pulding out the
and network acroes the UK Foor
are focusseq on

ficre aptic broads
of our management teams
cultcing out Gore optic breadband nerworks for
resicdential customers and smiali businesses, and a
fifth 15 buildhrg a fiore remwerk to GQI ver e erprige
connectvity. Qur sixthiis a seftware developme
company operat ng ir the fiore secior and

crov-ding services 1o our Group Cormparies,

Within tris
network oroviding Connacty

divizron we rave pla

ans o creste a
Ty 1o over one milhon
y of which

owns and v llages that don't currently

properties in the rext trree yvears, ma
arg in small t
have access o Internet connactivity
ways of working and comrnunicating.

fit for mocern

Mot only are odr fore kusinesses bringing

connectivity to undersarved communities, they are
emp{oyﬁ“ent opportunites for
rg academies and

are driving diversity 1

also generatng
younrg indwiduals
apprenticeshugs scr
Telecoms, wth one of cur compan.es having
fves 1o reCruit w

vig trair:
ernes, and
a numper of inba

launched omen

into the secior

Home building

Our home puilding division utiises a hgh

proportion of sustanalbie Umber frame constructon
ethods and instals ar <o

progertes, leazing the way n

ce carbon emissions.

urce heat pumps in at
hig sector and

relging redu

Lpgoane smildd
pesibitadng

e
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Our strategy in focus

Cur businesses

Energy
Trrougn our energy divis.an, the Groug owns and
operates energy sTes which suppy gas ang

el

CInCity nto tne ~etwork, as well a5 construcin

o

recewah.e engrgy sTes for future sale Of the 220
energy sites that we own and operate, 194 provide
renewable energy, Corinouting ¢ the Group's
posivon as orie of the largest producers of
rerewsh.e erergy from corrmercial sc

a
ir the JK Energy s are typically expacted to

gererate stabie profits for many years, as such

) - b

nUSINESsas s attrachive

predictakie proats over t-e long term

Renewabie mergy 51eS cenerale nower frorm
<

(‘\
F\
]
A
o
=
O

sustananle sc el energy produced either

directly

-

ool Iarge Indwstral consumers or 1o the
newwork Many of our
gual fy for government incertives, whnicn resJlts n a

portion of the

renawable energy sites aiso

e generateg energy peneltur g from
ked In' for a specified period once
a qualifying ste s opera
been grarted. Ths nas reduced sorme of the impact
Y prae 1o
As ey sites built in the UK do not gualify for

rates that are 'loc

rora: and accredtaton has

of tne volatit ty in icrg-term ene ecasts

BIOOC government INCenuves, we are Leeng more

interast .\nne market for sires ke the ones we swn

and opearate

o

Traring enc oo tmg encrgy sites s a cove part of
most 62% of

Thus oart of our Group has

oUr strategy and ¢ ‘em'y mrakes up aln

Did you know?

P P

generated
due to rnarkel coraitons bat crucally it has the

Fugner returns s year than expettec

potential 1o provide statle returns over the long-
term, Thit combinanon 5 Key 1o our strategy (o
balance risk and return a<ress the range of Group

3
actvities 1o agenerate targer returns for shareholcers

“Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due © tne hgh-auality energy

25 W OWN, W
are adie 1o secure iorng-tert finarcng from

ma nstrear barks at compenbive rates (o enhance
our returms, which heles us o celver the layel of

returri our sharar.clders exne

L)
B
&
=
ar
e
o
I
s

b
=
P
D
.l
=
=2
Q
=
]
I

sun porter b/ reserve Cower p.ama which orovide
bac ‘J\JQ CWeEr o

tnerefare Denefis from

the Mavona! Gria The Croup

Sivers Goatan within this

ol yusiness, simce weake
part of its business, since weaker conditiors for

erergy p.rodu:t'or from one techrology ofter result

ir strorger prodocton elsewhere The Group 250
gans dgnificant oer

oread across

e

2t from Its scale in this sector
as oUr DUSNEess 5§ cvar 2270 sitas,
vastly reducing the r sk 1o Group sroftabnliny o one

site suffers an operauonal disruptan

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

In adcition 1o our LK sites, tne Grodg 15 deyeioping
sites Gverseas, o unsd:cuions tnat we understand
Lanity as they

budd or our sector expertse N countres at an

well These present an atlraciive oppo

earlier stage of rerewabie develooment Currently
we operate wing farms 0 Iretans ard France and

so.ar sites in France and Australa, We have several
wind sites under construction i Powand, France
snd Australia

During ne year we acguired rine raserve power

ar
plans and one energy from waste site Foliowing
construction, we s ;\d two wing farms in F nand and

skorily after the year end we alse said Darungton

Foint, a large sowr sie 1in Australia
Healthcare
Trrough our heaithcare division, tne Group

nperates In the private medical and retirement ving
sectors, Cur et rement bving business, Rangaford,
owns and operates two retrement vilages in
Wittsriire and Norta Yorkshire and is currenty
developirg thres further wies for future operations.

Our private medical business, One Fealthcare owns
and operates two private noseitals ir <ent and
Hertfordshire, providing the very best level of care

n modarm, well equpped noseitat facdities.

Lince returning to nermal working patierms we have
seer an nnrease 1N the numrber of patients payirg
for tner own treatmert as they face long wating
ists for NHS treatrment. Despite the lifong of

. Cowid-19
continues t¢ affect the acuwie care eclor with a
stressed NHS and ngreased infection control

widasoread restrictons across tire UK

mieasures that reman in placc.

Lending
Lending continues 1o be a
and nas prcvlded “he Groug with: 2

core part of our business
crofitable and
rative sector over the past twelve years
slished part of our Group mainly

cash gene
This well-esia
conssts of property wending, which provides
short-terr financing to experienced professional
oroperty developers, buy-to-let landlords seeking
aging finance, and deveicpment inancirg,

which grovides short and medium term financing
to cormpanies

A key penefit of the scale of our Group and of the
pusiness that we have bailt upin th s sector i our
abixty to mitigate nsk througr having a large
rumber of short and medium term icans spread
across small projects o individual borrcwers, We
oroachively manage counternarty rnsks through

undertaking careful borrower due diigence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.

¥
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Our strategy in focus

secunty over assets typicaly on a first charge bass

and mantanng conservative loan-to-value rauos

Nat all loens will petform as expeciad and tnese
measures help o rmnimise e impact of
performance 1ssues G an ndwicua. loan s

further mitigates through the value that we lerd to

rdwidua: borrowers, reiative to our 1oial lcan pook,

which s currently soread on average across 182
loans, with an average eividual ioan of £2 3mi

Fibre division
Our hbre division ncludes Fve cperational
compa™es buitding fibre retwerks in tne UK and

one seitware development company

Through cur res.dental Fiore bus nesses, we are
Building new ohiysical ﬁbre networks for
comriurities i the UK and <o far have built out
fibre nfrastructure in underserved parts of Devon,
Scmerset, Dorsel, Witisnre, Hampshire,
Worcestershire anc the Home Countes. We are
arMiNg 1o pass cver one miliion haemes oyer the
next three years,

Build ng these large netwerks nvowes connecting

large dazacentres and teleonone excranges i the

UK with nomeas and pusiresses, efectivery
replacing the copper wires tha: were fad im the first
na'i of the 20th cenury Jurassic, Swish and
Siganet are verticaly integrated, as ey both own

oy

2 fibre infrastructors ard aiso nave the end

customer relatonstio as the intemet service

provider or "ISP”. Ailpoints owns fibre
and will onoard other 1SPs to the Allpe
to sel connectivity to

nfrastructure
s network
the erd customer,

Trrougts Vorooss. we are nuld ng 2 nelwork n
London 1o supply business-to-business ('828")
2rerprise connectivity direct to business
customers Vorboss has instailed over 500k of
fibre optic cables in London since 2020 and ha
single 106
ra ket recognising that ampihious London

recenuy laurcred a GEps product o

busiresszes will guickly reguire more than the 1Gkbps
cornscivity they've relied or 1o aate
We have zeen rapid growin in our i

sirce 2018 a

to become a

no we exgect this division o continue
targer part of our business over time
The Group expects o spend aoproxmatealy £1lbn of
oy 2025 o fulhtits build plans and reach
IMore Commuites In need‘oF ultrafas

capital
t broadoand

Home building

Cur new horte puilding cusiness, tlivia € a fud
service housesuildear, acquiring land, develon ng the
site, and subsegue-uy seling the romes o

ind vigual buyers. Thesze sites include a mix of ooen
marker and aftordable nouses and strive to deliver
higr quallty aspiraliona. normss. The Busimess is
growing fast
£250m and

woth projected anraal wrnover of
600 houses guilt per year furecasted

with:n fre rext 2-3 years




Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strateqgic skills

Paud Latham 7 DAL 0

Paul 15 Thisf Executve of Fern and s responsibie for the day-to-day runring of the

busiress He is alsn a managng director of Octapus Investrmerts Lmite (G,

where he hac worked snce 2005 Olis a key suppler of resource and expeft\'se
l's dual ro le =nsures that this relationship works effectively ard it the

best interests of F shareholders Paul has hac vanous general managerment

to Fern Pau

and interma: consu{{ing roles across a number of sectors and orings wit him

a weaith of indusiry and business experance

ith Willey 0 “a ovo Do
associate professor of strategy and entreprenelrsnip at London
mness School He also hclds vanous non-executive direciorships and advisory
roles at nigh growth ard more mratdre companies. |0 his sole as non-executive
chairman he is respors.ble for the effective oporawon of the Board, as well
as 1ts governance He brangs to the Fern bus ness ndeperdent commercist
exsperience gained frorm his time n academia, private eqguity investment,

consulfing and various hands-on operational reles

Poter Barlow 00 el e ouoom

Peter nas over 30 years' experience in international financing of infrastructare and energy
As a serior execuive for International Power, Peter was responsble for arranging over
S12on of project and corporate funding, as wel, as banking relalionships and treasury
activities He nas spent over 20 years working internatonally for HSBC, Bank of
Amer ca anc Nomura, financing acgusitons and greenfied projects in the erergy
and infrastructure sectors His corrbination of Bqard level financing and energy
experierce over numergus energy sub-ceciers, ard his all-round «xnowledges of
all the zecters in which Fern cperates, adas significant value to the operaton of
the Board as well az its strategy formation and deployment.,

Tim Arthur o0 oowor L0 T

Tim s a chartered accountant with more thar 25 vears' international expenenc

as & finance director of both puslc and private comparnes. nitially Fe worked

for Price Waterhouse in Birmirgham and Chicage. More recently he was Chief
Financial Officer of Ligntsource Renewable Energy Lid. & g.obal leager in the
funding. den upm&rt and long-term operation of solar phf“tovo‘tcm projects

Tir brmg extersive financial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as
well as an urderstznding of dynamic technology businesses gained frem nis
executive positens.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Management idenuty, sssess and manage risks
assoclated witn the Group's business ghiectives and
strategy. Risks arise from external socurces, =ose
which are inherert corrmercial nisks in the market,
and from operationa risks contained within the
systemis and processes ampioyed within the

e

businegs. Overall sk exposurn

i5 mManaged across

the GroLp througn the diversification of acuvte
botn by sector and geography.

‘Energy Division.

The prcipal risks tha the Groul ars exposed to
are gezcribed below, aleng witt the mitigating
achons we ake to reduce the potentiz! impact of

trie risk, We also incluge

~1 of wnetne
tre likebnood of the ns« has 1mcreased. gecreased
or rarmaingd the same,

SUr aEresime

Risk Mitigations Change
Market risk: » Contracts are entered 1o which Txothe income for a

The energy 8=CI0r 15 @XpENeraing porucn of the energy gererated by our sites

significant turculerce and there s + Long-term goverament backed offiake agreemerts are

a nsk that forecast leveis of
are not achieved due o charg
wholesale energy prices, ofi-ta
CONUracis o government subaidies .
Due o thsurbuent envircnment,

the potential for increase d

nterventon by the equiator 5 ass
arnsk

"ROCT scheme 30
cﬂrcratﬂd from RO

Vit policy makers wir

Cranges in Covernment colicy
may result in reauced roome

srrearns withn the group dus to
r‘jddm(mal ‘evigs

Operatlonal rlsk -
Leves of energy produced may

Lroradet

sub-ontinal weatner conai-ons re
or performance issles with asse
eguipment, which may result in
sigrificant urp :”1""7?’_‘1 Townurre.

5 are Jnavatable

Fmancial risk: .
Revenues ifrom erergy

generaticr or sale proceeds

from the sale of sitas) generated
from oversess s°es 572 lower than
expeciad due to flurtustons

f@r g eXcrange rates

Construchon rlsk .
Consrucien of the

onger o S ~ore G

art cigate
G\v’dlab ut/\_/‘ rin

v maerias

i place, such as et

cwersmcanon of lechnclogies 31
ce ower than art Cipated due to . Regma( servicing of asseis is unc
xbo* M good cond.ion and m

fication

Gas and %‘

Rerewanle Ooligation Cert

S of QUr enerdy irrdome was
C revenue

Ne engage with the governTnent and tre Office of
zleﬁmot\ Markets {OFGEMT WG cortnbute

Toan n”r‘L,:V,/ Flelles lncreased
1o set futLre requlatory requirements, {due 1o mrarket
irstabity)
pility of the weather is m tgated througr
diocetion of siies.
ertaken 1o ensure assets e
R TR
THTUISE INE sk Tnat
o change

for a cnger perad

] o idue
to wclan \e Fx

movernents
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk

e A b 20 B B e € by a1

Market risk:

Cxpecied sai0s from cusicrers
are iower than antic ,)a‘(d dueto
ncreasea competit an from otrer

providers

A crange in poeloy by tne
regislators in favour of larger
operators could impact our aniity
¢ deliver paanned d:—w:\opmcm

Mitigations

« Managemenrt reguiarly reviews the comoeitive Iaﬂda@pf
i target puild areas (o ensure plans go not confhat with
olther allernative retwork operatars,

« Managemert engages proactively witn the Office of
Ccmmurma ions and the Goverrment to ensare the

henefits of srralter operators are well understcod ard its
sis are appropnately represented.

We are an acive parbcipant in retevant industry bodies,
particularly Ir ose representing alterrative network

intere

R R b 5 e

Change

~ [

Increased
ldue 1o maore
COMPELtons n

the rmarket)

erators.
redpmr\g revenues and efficience QOSrALrs
gair \ed from alarger Dresence ing
Construction risk: « The Group has cortracted with a number of ai®eren

supplers to reduce the eposure W any one individual
enity. Selection of outsource pariners 1s managed
through a detalled procurement process with tlong term:
vistbrlity of work allowirg partners to plan inancial and
people resources accordingly.

o Where supply chain oreblems are exoecied for um

Construction OF e network
takes longar Gris more Costly
than anucipated dug to resource
availabiizy or ‘ncreased cost of
raw Mmateriais.

Increased (due
to Increasing
demand for
resource In
tne sector as

alternatve

netncrk
— - e of Fyre A
iterns our teans generaly have & months stock of [bre, previders scale
duct and other materiais on hard, and advance order bunlel)
efhmcul oqu pmen. wt% l_;rg 2ad tmes
Operational risk: . Ow networks are built in a resiient way with Hiverse
Network service s interrugted or route ootions shouwd & falure cccur i one route. B

unrel able leading 1o potential ic3s
of custocmers and reputatioral
darnage.

This, combined with an anility to entfy and resove
correctivity 1ssues quickly, menimises downtme of the
retwCrks

NG change

PR Tae o
z:zr‘::?"‘z*

St e 5 e $he
s Hieaais mam*mtwa»;w%:?x;;yma ey,
ST at e e

e
R Pi‘&hi
ey s . T
i @,%&
L ﬂﬁ Sni a*z o T e,
E




Mitigations Change

Market rlsk « The teams pro-achively marage our poss ornoan the
rcreasirg inflation and irtersst rmarketplace and are pregared to enforce whers needec if
ratec tead to a market-wide a lnan moves into defaut.
affordat Ity 1ssue, resuling n & o Our foars are made at conservative [Dan-ic-vatue (LTVI m
drap in prooerty Viiues 3rass all ratios with 3 maomum Y of 70% e b
sectors of real estate. Thiz may o LnareE
impact cur abily I recover 3
iman ir full through a refirance
or fale
Counterparty nsk . Lom: are sec;red agairst Dhys “al unaerlying secunty,
Loans rmay be mads 0 uncuitable such as 2 charge over the property of other assets of the
counterparnes, meacting sur Borrower, These are typically on & firss fha(je SIS ¢
ability to recover the lGan baarce encure rraxmurm chance of recovery shoule enforceme %
i full, acton be nesce nereased due
+ Thorougr due diigence is perforrred pnor 1o writing 'O urctanie
loans, m_tuqu sroperty or land vaiuations and Creg eooOnNTIC
chenks dang on barowers. clirrate)
« YWhere loars

are written for assats under construction,
mrilestones and covenans are out lace t O ENsUTe
stages are complate pror 10 Teeas. domms.,

Risk

gt Waue SHhre T S HSmm T e Ve OTEoa TeRyie OE

Mutlgations

Market rlsk (Healthcare and . Dla“mrg consents on undes Je'O"Gd and are opumises Lo

Home Building}: maxim.se ravanues ana reduce the 7sk of losses on sae .%

A fall ir house prices could Increaze (due

moact our atiety o generats Lo unstable

expecteq revenue from ine sa.e PCOrCIC

Gf apariments in our retirement climael
ard nouses bult by Elivia

Construction risk (Healthcare » Tre Grouo enters fixed price contracts wheré approoriate

and Home Building): 1o redoe exposLre o ncreasng matenal Costs —

h—or‘»strucr:c I takes ionger or o Trie Group o'y wores witn reputabie Zrd parnes with a e

sian ante pated
e avalabty or

terials

duu Kalie:

rereased cost of raw na

Health and Safety risk
{Healthcare):
Tre prevention of Inury or

strong rack record of delivenng similar projects,

"E‘auf‘\ﬂ‘ o) U‘WE

QUGN Cond

-ar'g reg-x.ar e rsopect ors. ana are

NG change

avcidabnie 1oss of ife of our also sulpjett WG extermal inspecrionrs by regu.&tory‘ Lodies
pateris s of utMmost iImgortance « Tae Grodp has 'nsurance Solc e pace & =

ard.s frnrdt o] rra;mamrg 3
Litigation ag

to rmedic

finzncia. 'osset dus

al ma'pract e C.8ums

NO Cnange
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Risk Mitigation Change

Market risk: » Where fcating rate aeb: s m place (where interest vanas

Anincrease in base rates may in line with ar undeslying nenchimark rate), tne Group %

increase costs on debt fazil ties, enters into hedging arrangements to fix 3 portion of these Ircressed

Irmpacung the Grougs's abalty to payrnents throcugnout the terrm of the facil ty Hedging (e o roen

service debt as it falls due arrangements are cutlred n MNote 21 of the financial nterast ratas;
statements

Liguidity risk: « Adetalied cash fiow forecast is preparec and reviewed

Poor maragement of 2ash w thin by maragement on g monthly basis, Incorporaring cash

the Group could mpact the avallabilizy and cash requirements across tne Group. On at

Group's ability to meat obiigations least a guarterly bass this s shared wit the Beard,

as tney fall due. = The Group moniksrs bank covenants on an orgoing basis e

. foae]
G ensure continued adherence to coven \Where

covenants ca't be mel, forecasts are updated for the
lower cash avalab.e as 3 resuz of the resuiction.

= Tre Group has a flexn e Srance facity which can be
drawn on at snort notice 1o meet immediate business

Mo change

rieeds.
Health and Safety rish: » We have devecped robust hiealth and safety poucies in
The safety of our employees compliance with 15045001 across the Group to ensure
and hose emplayed through the weil-being of our staff
contracts are of paramount » Health and safely fraiming s provided o our staff and
importance There is 3 nsx that COMTECIONs o a reguiar bas s, Increacec
accdents in the workpiace could
result in sencus injury cr death.
Cyber Security risk: « We employ a Chief Irformaten Secunty CCISOT
An atfack or cur ‘T systerrs and who is respons ble for data secunty acress the Group and
data could lead to dsruptior reports guarterly to the Board. S
of our cperancns and ioss of « The CISG waorks closely with our businesses o ensure e
customer ¢aa. Loss or misuse aciequate siandards of security ano information No change

of data may resullin reputalional rmaragemsant gre mMet
damane, regulatory action urder « Each of our businesses that nold customer data nas ther
GDPR ard potent al fines. own aedicated resource for iT and secur ty

The strateqgic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed on 1z Lehall oy,

PS Latham
Director
16 Decemper 202

(%]
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Section 172 (1) stetament

The Soard congider that tney have adnered 1o the

Group acqguired a large scale, ready o construct
reguirerments o.‘ sacton 172 of the Companies Act wingd site i Australia This deployment aligns
2006 lthe "Act), and nave, 1 geod itk acted ina with the Croup's sirategy to coninue to !

way that woutd be most Ukely to promore the : develop renewanle energy sites wh ch orovide
success of the Group for the benelit of te membars predictabie, long-term revenue streams. The :
as a whowe (having regard (o al siakerowers arc : Board considered the opporiunity anc how it
matters set oul in section 17215-1 of the Act aligried with our obyectives to maxe a posit ve

i the decisicns taxer during the year ended : contnibunon o the commurity and ervironment.

¢ The Group decded to expand Into cur newest 1

division, house buittng i Vta] 2u' tre Grous :

has regard (G @ : acquired Elivia hormes, a full-service property !
& lixely developer, grovigira services from the design, |

conseausnce of any decisions in tne iong wrm, and ¢ o the engneenrg and then final construct:cn

l'stens to tne v ews of the Group's key stakehclders to onsyre (e delvery of guaity warkn wansh\p, i

1O bunid trust ar'-—d ersure it fully understands the : Dwersifying the Group's asset base and entenng .
cotential Impacts of the decisions it makes The Nto ths new sector has oeer well thoughn 3
Eoara fulfils these dutes paruy by delegation o P outwithiong term growih in mnc. The Board :
committees ard the boards of Subsidlar'y : azsessed the strategic opportunities withun the :
dandertakirgs, who operate witrin 3 corpo secto” pefore aeciding to rove ahead with th }
overnance framewaork acs arquisiion, corsiderirg Now s would Impact {
) . . axIstng tusmesses within the aiv ion and how

At every Board meeating a review of health ana o St ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
o . ) ) : it avgned with tng Group's sategic oblechives to !

safety across the group. fnanciat and operstoral : ) . ) ) i
) N L : deiver iong-term value and p.recwc.able growih i
perfermance, as weh as ‘ecat and regulatory : i
‘ : for our shareholdears, :
comglience, 1s underiaken, The Board also review : :
othier areas over the course of e fnancia: year Toe Reviewing ana decid rg to rove anead with !
ircuding the Group's Susness 7 “feg/ “ey rsks, imcreasing biomass ope which is part of H

tion
Stakeho&der%eia%d ratrers, diversity and inclLavy, our renewabies civig on 0 Gewber 2021 the

enviconrmental Matters, cornorate responsiciity, and Group acqured a large scale, waste -to-anerg; ;
governance, compliance and \ega. matiers, : constructen site in Scotland. Tais decloyrmen:

- . aligns with the Group's strategy to cerntinue o
Principal decisions E ¥ = strewegy

diversify the Group, dav

5
o]
k=]
—~
0]
>
G
=z
o
&3
™
ol
3
o}
=
[Co]
<

We define prncipa: degisions taken oy e Board as
sites wrich nrovide pregciable, ong-term ?

those dMCWC”Q tmat are of a strateg © nature and

reven.s streams, ans provide res ience agairst !

. : . ) consigéred the opporiunty !

exarr et of orncipgl decis ons L mace i ke vear :
00 2 : w it our chjecives to

enged 30 June 2022 : ‘ / ;

: zont-buion to the cornraunty !

. E salualing ard cecoing o move a~230 win an ernvirarirent '

~Cresing wnd Sperators, which s part of :

our remewabez divisior in August 2021 the :
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» The board decided to change audit irrs via a
tender process for the year ended 30 June 2022
Tre Group had changed <igrificantly snce the
orevicls add.tors were appoirtag and therefore
we were uriatle 1o relabiy assess tne va.g for
ohey we recewved, Three firrms underwent

the tender process and Lrost & Young LLP were

selected because of ther «rrong cammereial
understaraing of owr bus.ress, efficient auait

mrethogology and valde for money

Business strategy

Cur busizess strateqgy 12 set odt on pages 11 to 14 of
the Strategic Report Managerment prepares a
detaled Group budget which s approved by the
Boarc o an annual pasic and forms the Sass for
the Group's reésource plarning and deployrent
de<isions Ir making decisions concerning he
businezs pian, the Board Fas regara first and
foremost to ite strateqgic focus, but also to other
matters sucn as the interests of its vanous
ctakeholders and the long-term mpact of its
actions on the Grodp's future and reputation

Shareholders

Shareholcer relations and generating sharehaolaer
vallie is a key corsiceration when the Beard 15

rs The orirme medium by
wrilch the Grodp communicates with shareholders

making strategic dec'sio

Is through the arnual regert and financ:al
statements, which aim to provide shareholders wathk
a full understarding of the Group's acuvities and its
resutts. This information is published on our website
at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Group's emgioyees are fundamerntal o the
overall success of tre business The Directors fulfl
therr duty to employees oy enfrusting oversight to
subsid ary Boards which the Cheef Executive of the

Group also sits on

The directors of tne subsidiary undertakngs
manage the day to day decision making,
engagement ang communications with employee

anidd ensure that people are treated fairly and are
valued with rezpect tC pay, benefitand conditions.
We fuily realise that our employees wish to be
informec and consulted on matters affecting their
waor< and to be invoived .n problem-solving
affecting their cwr zreas of interest and
responsitiily The
podey of grod commurtcanon ot allovels and we

Group s firmiy committed o a

aim to establsh a
encourages the cpen flow of informaticn and

climate whicn constantly

idegs. Preseritly this includes montny team triefing

at 5 local leve! and the publication of rmonthly key

performance irdicators covering outout, cperating
costs. and heath and safety.

The Pealth and salety of our employees in the
workplace s a continual focus for the Gre

its breac operationar bus

o, given
ness. The Direciors review

Health & Safety Reporting at each bcard meeting to
ensure a cies and proccedures are in

poropnae polic
place ¢ protect the heaith and sa
emgioyees and cortraciors. Wnere
potentia, defictencies or 1ssues, these are ‘ollowed

fety of cur
there are

up and raesolved on a timely basis, with the Board
having oversight of the actions takern.

The Group outsources acivities ard management
of certain ©
Where activities are outiourcec

operatiorat actvities o external supplers
the Board ensures
that they are managed oy reputable supphers whe
meet all the relevant inrdustry and regulatcry
commitmerts as well as reatirg empwoyees fairly
Expected standards are documented ir
contracrs and adherénce to these are conunuaily

all service

moritored by Board through tharr service
agreemeant with Octopus Investmerts Lim ted

Suppliers and customers

The Grouo acts in a fair rmanner wiin all st pp.iers
and customers and seeks to manta n sfrong
business relatensh.ps with them. Thnis 1s achieved
by all contracts be ng negonated trrough a far and
transparem tender process which inc.udes
assecsing e impact on the long-term objecuves of

H

5 B 5
25 ot i dent s
rEaEd g i
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the Group. We review our payment processing
tLmes sgainst contracts every six monthis to ensure
suppiers are paid promptly and this mformation for
the campany 3 avalaole or the www.gov.uk

WensiHe,

The Group ensuras  acts farly and in g transparent
marner to all customers across all dwvisions and

services, and actively engagas 1o resove any disputes

o]
2

! defauft@.‘ The Board closely rionitors customer

G engages witn the management team o
Jnderstand the issues if business perormance coes
storners’ cxpeciations,

“The Board considers Octopus Investments | mited
1o pe & kay business partaer and suppler with
re rovision of operationas
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Community and environment
The prowgion and operation of sustainab.e
infrastructure s a

—_

3t the cenue of the Group's

strateglc gaoals Through it business aoiwvilies the
Grouo seaks to make a positive contnbuticn to tne
cormmunity, envronment ard economy Our
rerewable enargy business is he:c

118 renewatie

ing the UK meet
enargy targets, our private hospita.s
have suoported the NHS throughout ine Cov d-19

pardemic oy crovid ng reaiment for non-Covic-18
NHS patierts that otherwse could rot have been
Carried out, 376 our Abre networ< wiil give pceopie
in rurs. communities access te h.gh-sneed

broadeoand

Business conduct
As DIectors our nten.on is io berave responsity,
ooergie tha bls

ErSiT g Managerent Imess with

iInregrty ana in accordance with the Mgk stardaras

P

of conduct anc coverrance expectec of a business
such as ours QLrintenton through our business
trategy (cutined on pages 1115 14115 10 onerate in

ectors and work with other nusinesses that share

v

5
our values

Business ethics and governance

The Board iz resconsib.e for ensuring that tre
activities of the Group and its vanous businessss are
conducted in cerrpuaance with the law and
aoplcable governance and regulaiory regimes, and
in adharence with prevaling cest pract.ce for the
re.evan: industry, Thiz incluges reviewing .nernal
contris. ensunrg that there is an approoriate
baiance of skills and expenerce represented on the
Board, a
give a true and {air view cf the state of affairs of the
Croun, turtrer dewil car ke found 1n
of directors responsib litiez on cage 29, In the yea”

rd ensaring that the financial staterments

e ctmbeem
the statement

to 30 June 2022 no areas of cancern have been
flagged .n this regarc

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The 3card’s golicy On empoyee, hurran rights.
socaland ¢
and anti-corruot on ard bricery matiers s giscussed

PUMUNITY ISSUES, EMVIFGT TN 60l.Cy

i the Directors’ Report on pege 25 The Boarc
aclivey Prommotes a corperate culture that is base

on eth'cal values and benaviours
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Beview of Hnancial statemants

The purgose of this regort 13 10 prowvde additioral

exolanatory informanan on the fnancial statemenis.
Ir rmeasunng our performance, tne finans al
rmezsures that we use irclude thaze that have been
derved from our reporied resulis inorder 1o
eliminate factors that distort year-cn-year

comparisons, hese are considered No

finarcial measures.

A reconcraion o

f these o the financial res
ce found innote 28 < i

stateriets,

The financ al staterrents show assefs at cost, as such

tney o nct reflect the fufure value that we exoect o

the share price and may no: reflect changes 11 the

full market vaue of assets or businesses owned by

the Group.

A rumrber of acquis tions were maace durnng the
year, incuding nine cperatonal reserve power sites,
a wazte o energy site under construciian, a
Australiz and

nder construchaon,

construction ready wmd “arrm in
severirean solar reoftop sites
Shartly after the vear end. in ‘}uly 2022, we sold
Darlington Foirt, a large soiar site in Australia

To support continued nsion, we had oullt Le
cash reserves at year end of £250m whicn included

a large cash inflow of 297 from glacing external

dernve from tese businesses, To that extent ;orefinancing in Danlingtor. Poirt onor (o sae
accounting performance may differ matenally frorn
(restated; Movement

2022 2021

£'000 £'000 %
‘?c«em.e 711,830 425,302 E7%
”BITDA 194 916 104 035 7%
Pfoﬁf {Io 3 b@mre tax 47 604 (22 663) JIO”/
! wdmg boolf inet of provisions: 360,901 385 512 (24,611 (F‘/c,
Cash 256,415 172,478 82,937 40%

3 793,169 699,440 93729 13%

et assels 2 219 448 1,887, 842 J31 6,07 18%

Financial performance

Overal., the Group has reported a profit before tax of
E47 & for the year ended 30 June 2022, which is a

E70.2Zm improverrert or the prior year (2021
E£22.7m loss restated). Overall ERITOA ircreased by
87% to £195m (2021 £104m restated], wich is
orimanly due o increased energy generalicn as well
35 INCreased energy orices

Revenue increased by E287m to £712m 2821

‘Earnings efore interest, tax, depreciation and armrortisat:on

£425m) whic
iNcrease in raverae witin sur energy
growth s two foud, increased enercy generaion
frorn having owned/operated one of our biomass
plants for the fuli year and z large solar plant ir
Australia reaching commizsion ng, and a
increase in average energy prices over the year due
ich petween supply and demand,
confhct n Ukraine

n was predominantly crven by a 84%

dwvision. This

significant

to the misrma
exacerbated by the ongoing
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Reverue growth was sirongest in our ensrgy

divis'on but we alse saw a marked improvement in
reverie from our resrerment villages. Ths part o
sunded well fromr the

by trie Covid-19 pandem ¢
response, seling 41 urits 10 the year lan imcrease of
52%

Cur business has reso
lOCkdowns required

pard anincreasing inrevenue of £7.5m o

E20 4m (2021 E12 7rn)

Revenue from our lending division saw a drop o
25% 1o BE42m (2021 £57rn) due ¢ a smaiter average
loar: ook over tre year a5 cash was made avalable
1o grow other parts of the business

Operanrg expenses for the year were in | ne with
our expeciab:ons, with the ncrease primarly driven
COSS

Dy ricreased ooerar g 1N our ibre givsien as

it has expanded. Refinancing externa! deptto
SQCUre IMprovec terms over tne past two yea
contributed to a decrease in interes: costs of £2 5m

to £33.6m (2021 £26 1im).

Included in the resulis this year s a profit of 228
recogrised an the sale of two wind farms in F rland
and & reaizaton cf £1 6m of deferred consideranon

on saiar sites soid im previols years.

Financial position
A shareholaer nte

seen ret gosets arow to £2

Conbnoe tar

s
-0 %
3w

reztated). Ir the year erdeo
1Issued 120 sk 2
COnsIGers

[

-
-3
T
o
R?
<
e

~
nJ
f.
S
0
I P
3 0N
O o= O
m
Mo

exiernal

Snararn g

opera "*mg actwit
£342m

ong-term fnancirg and capital rased by rew share

.

b whick has peen utlced alon

izsues to grow the busness, We have i

¥
suosantialy into the fbre croackand secior over

ne past four vears wrich wiil require furtner captal

exoenditue over the ~ext 2-5 years, InCreasng our
aiversiication across zectors.
Of the cash hed at year end, 5211 1 was held n

cur energy, home bulding ana ficre subsicians

where there are a numbper of construct or ard

5

infrastructure proects |

e for stage o

under way, requiring cash o
the

be readily availan ayments ducin

rmonths after year end.

1 ESETm restated),

ues o be a sgnificant nurnoer on the

iance sreet and anses on the acgusition of some
d businesses, for example

s, often rave a marker value

e55 of the company’s net assets, refiecurg
reizb e ful.re income streams Accouﬂ%irg
corvenhorn requires that onty ide~tfia
namred on the balance sheet s the accounts
canrotl recorc the baiance ¢f thg & *dmoma rmarket

value which comor ses t

are expectec to desver

n
f e vaue of Txed assets themsetves (such

grised as goodvw-l

SHCeSS O
olar panﬁtsf IS rec

FPut simply, te market vaiue of the energy

generaton busiresses (o indesd any operat'cral
bus.resses) reflec

orofits, notthe cos

is the value ¢f future expected

tof simply buying tangble asets
urines. We pay

stes we acalle, which may

such as soiar parsls or wind

Q

cowll recogr.sed wil

BT cally over tne e of the
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Sactor performance

Energy P{Z021: £196m restated), partaly drver by increased
As economic aCtivity and global demand rereased 1 site Cosis where E120m was incurrad at our
throughout the year, 36 too did wholesaie energy ! biomass stes and £93rm &t our reserve power sites,

the prices for raw matenals have increased, o

average, by 63% aue to an increase in the supoly

prices, driven by maovernents in commrodity pnces,
which resulled in the overall increase i revenue

earned across our erergy sites. These marxel coss. The combined cost of sales for the reserve
factor ve resulted i anincrease in revenue of

5 ha power and :omas: sies increased by £110m to
B84% to £5935m (2021 £322m)

E£217m (2021 107m). it sheuld be noted that the
mass and reserve

reverus generaed by the

Correspondingly, EBITDA also increased by 112% o

power sites increased by £192m during the year t©

£266m (2021 £126m restated) reflecting the : )
. . ) N . E2REM202% Fielm).
sgnificant increase in energy reveriue, Overail totar 3
ogeratirg costs :ncreasaed by E230m to £327m :
FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
{(MWh) {(MWh) Availability Availability
Biomass 1,050,038 886,553 84.6% a3 2%
Landfll Gas 240,226 256.026 97.9% 97 E%
Recerve Sower 403,355 141,084 94.2% 92.0%
Sotar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96.0%

Wing 851,214 881,741 90.5% S3 1%

Total 3099680 2682015




3 COVERN

L

Group finance review

Healthcare

Feaithcare cperat ors contriputed £46m
(2021 £42m) 1o CGroup reverues for the year
reflecting the impact of Increases revenue in
Zales of apartments at the retiremens
villages have repounded well from tne loocdowns
requirea by tne Covid-19 gandemi ¢ response,
selling 41 units in ne year (a~ ncrease of 52%
2021) and ncreasing revenue by £7.6m to £20.2m
(2021 £12.7m).

Rangeford

from

L.ending
Revenue from lending decreased by
(2021 £57m) prirmanly due to a s
{Gan ook for 2022 wiich resulted n
tot

Slam to E42m
aler average

a gecreased
tal loan book
~d {2021
coen in the loan 2oox enables

e f 35 other

sectors within the Grou_c rcuding acgulsitions and

m for the year The
% 6L atthe year ¢

. id
o be available for opportanities acroe

anstruction. The ma<e-up of the (can book ~as
shifted stgntly where we mave 1ssued a higher
rumber of sralier lcans within the residenua:
sector, as well as more arger loans in the
developrnent seclor ara the commercial cecior
EE TDA for the lending dwvision decreased 1o a loss

of £8 7rn fram a orofit of neary £1m in e on

vear This movemeant reflects a provision of 25m n
tre loan book agairst loans to reserve power sites
and a provsion azainst § realtt:care loa~ of 14

Im tme year to June 2022, £39r was prov dec

against lears versus E22mn tne prior year
Fibre
As aregtvely rew dvision, au the fiore pusinezses

are ntre uid pf ase and are srar:-ﬂg o oadd

e

divis ©N had salo o SS%'j over 150, uﬁ ~ormes We

and leass ™ a prysical asset on balance sheet tre
¥

EBITDA loss o £55 4m (2021 £23 5 o hich
1511 line with expectations ard refiecis the
geveloomental stag Fie divisior

ssets will be
cost which

As we pulld these netwaorks oLt the

recognised on the batar
carnorincude future value which =5 expectedg o be
generated as the assets have been in
cenerated This s different to the share price where
e future value expecied t ergte

9]
&)
0]
(9]
15
3

assets s includeg

Home building

tlvia Forres was acquired in May 2022 and has
trerefore hzd drnited imgact on the fnancial

is
forgcast to delver £78m revenue and £6 5
EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2023 Fesuits
from the first quarter of 2023 indicate the busrnes
15 broedly perferming n line witn expectations

performance d.ring the year The pusin

m

Funding and liquidity
Or strategy s @ secure long-term fnancing at

consarvatve evels from manstream barks to

erhance returns from our renewabie energy
we had £1,04£1 of

externa: groject fnarcing with £449im of

bus resscs, Al y-ear and

headrcom avalab:e

This enables us t
marxet conaiders
as prediClable Cost Dase, revenue streams,
government incentives Or proven te

O acquire busiresses rat the
¢ have siable charactensics such

chnology and as
suCh bave ower reiums that withcut leverage woud
berzuffcient for our sharebclaers It 250 @ wows us
Flexibilty in financing ouwr busnesses and managing

cath fiow We cedeve that failing 10 adopt tns

sirategy woLid rave a regatve Impact on busimess

-

eturn ard sha-ehclder vaiue over the long term

Aoproxsrratey BU% of our mterest payable 1 fxed
and therefore ywe are not < gnificarty exposed (o
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the currert interest rate volathity. We connnually
ersure that they

are comget tive and optimized for the needs of the

review fnancing arangements to
businesc, To ernsure cash is managed in an agile
rmanner, we maintan a flexible Grance faclity
wWhiCh Can e arawr dowr or repaid to meet
immediate business needs

Looking ahead

The Groun has rebounaed well from the effects of
the Cowvid-1% panderric ard nas outperformec
expectatons Wnslst the current econom-c outloox
s one of challerge and uncertaimy, we anficipaie
mirnmal mpact on our resuits dua to the

d cost base, and

Coupled with the

predicizble revenue streamg an
essent al nature of cur activit'es
diversification we have built uo acrass the business
we are positioned

times anez

strongly for these turbulent

We continue to pay particular attention 1o the twn
challenges of rising interest rates and surging

inflaticn - both in terrs of lend

irg ard portfolic
managemerit, These trends impact all areas of the

Group's buziness and are likely to remain for the
foreseean.e futuqe, so we remai~ discighned in our
investment approach, continding o monitor the
chito

situatior carefully and taking a prudent acproa

ary currert and emerging risks.

We are posmve about the continued opportunity
for growth and continue to believe that the
Dus:Ness s Cosmoned well 10 take advantage of

futLre growtr coportunities across its core business
d housze ouilding

ns are well establsned in the market and

areas. Erergy, lending an
COBRrals
continue to rake excellent progress with robust
performances in the new financial year. In line with
our planned strateqy since the year end we so'd a
large solar farm i Australia for 3 small proft, with

proceeds beng redepioyed irto rew opooriunitie

Deploymen: into fibre cortinues toroll out in ne
with expectations and the Group has now passed
150,000 hoves by our fibre netwaorks
| rernams

s budget
already comrpleted or reserved across ail sites as at
rid of Sente

more T
Sales actvily in our healtncare CvIsiG
strong. with ne arlf £0% of an~ual sale

the e ermoer

Arrources with-n tre gutumn statement as part of

the 2823 Finarce Bil, the UK Goveramenrt will
eract a 45% winafall levy ('C W‘trmry Generator

Levy” or "EGLY on wholezale energy market
revenues in excess of E7S/MWHh This s exnected t
apply to the Groug fro:
Marcn 2028 T legislation wilc be publ shed
i mid-Cecember 2022, but bas
relegse an impact aralysis nas beer
as at 30 Septerber 2022 We €5
to be a drop in valuation of approxirately £45m
for the sites affected, which cormmbiuied o a
2.0p decrease in the share price © 1770p 1N
ter 2022

m 1 January 2023 1o 31

Trie exac
ad on the nitisl
1 performea
tumate tne impact

Decem

We expect to generate strong operatng returns

from cur estabished divisions for the cormring years,

in addiion o the anticigaied outflows *

construclon pnas s The nealthcare and

fibre dwisions are well 'nto therr buld nhase inting
with cur long-term strategy and we anticic

at
Sver e next

Cor Qur
@ 358ets

a
strong returns AVE I SEVRN years

Lipan rmaturity

PS Latham
Crrector

16 December 2022

oy

s SERETED
iAo -

\Eibesy



Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

The droctors of the Carmcany who were in office
durirg the year anz up to the date of signing the

Anarcial statements were,

[ERPC RN y

Refer 1o note 23 in tre Notes o the financial
siatements

Refer to tne Strategic Report on page &

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 12

Refer to the secuon 172 statement on page 21

e .,
f o 3 .

Tre Group's ouectives and polices on fina~cia. ns<
mMacagement including informatian on the
exposure of the Group to credit risks, Lguidity nisks
and markst rzks are set out in note 21 to the
financial staterments The Group's principal risks are
set ouTin the strategic report an page 16

N L z IR .

+

As perrrittes by secton 4i4c (1) of the Companie

W

Act 2056, the drectors have elected o disclose

information regured to be N fhe directors report
by Scredule 7 of the Large and Medivr-sized
—~

Cormpanies anc Graup: (Accounts and Repor:s)
Regulations 2GCE, in the sirateg'c repart

L N . s RV
N (N B

The Zoard recognises that a corporare culiure
based or sounc ethical values and tehgviours is an
assel Tre Group endeavours 1o corduct s
Gusiness w.th ntegrity, in an emnicat, professiona
znd respensibe manrer, realing odr erployess,
CUSICMIErS, sLppders and pariners with courtesy
and respect

ang el lites Sooula a nersgn cecome disab.ed
whle 1~ tre Troup's emp oymers, every effortis

mace 1o elaln tnem in ertp.oymenrt, gving

Y

alter=gtive Iral” G 85 Necessary.

u
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A LA v T e e

We Ttly real se that our emzloyees wish 0 be

micrmed and consultes or matters affecting their
waork and o be invowed n groblem-soly ng affecting

thelr own areas of nterezr and responsbility

“he Group is firmly comrmitted to
commun cator at ail lev
a climate wh.ch constan: L‘j
flow of nformaton and ideas Presemty%hws

ncludes monthly tearm brnefrgs at 2 .ocat leve and
the oublication of monthly key
ndicatc
negith and safety.

3 policy of good
< airn to estalzhsh
s the open

serfermarce
Srs cavenng ocutput, operating costs and

The Group has in place an agreement with Octoous
Invacstiments Limeed to prov.de services to the
Group covering operational oversignt,
adrninistration, company secretaral and company

accounting

The Board adopted a formal environmental, sccial
anid corporate governance (ESGT policy on
2020, The Group re

30 September cognises the

read o conduct its busimess, in a manner that is

responsible (o the envircrment, wherever possible.

Az alow energy user, the Company has electad not
to discloze data on its energy and carbon usage.
Limited 15 the cnly Compaﬁy nthe
Group tnat meats the reporting criteria ard

Fern Trading

therefore no nformation i< proviced for the Group
ac a whole

The Groun's has an Anti-Bribery Policy which
¥

mniroduced robust procedures to ensare full
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 and to ensure
that the highest stancards of professional ethical

conduct are maintamed.

In accordance with tte recommerdatons of The UK
Corporate Governance Code, tre Joard nas
consdered
staf of the

concerns, in confdence, with

he arrangaments in place (¢ encourage
Group or manager of the Group Lo raise
i ther organisation

1atters of

apout pois financial

renarting ¢ other matters |tis satished

ble imoropneles ik r
thal adeqgLate
arrangarnents are in place to allow ar independent

investigaton, and folow-¢

in the o

>y action where Mecessary,

to taxe piace wit rganisator

We are comrnitiad to acting ethucaly ang with
integnity 10 all cur business deal ngs and
relatonsimps ard o imalamenting and enforcing
effectve sysi

slavery 15 net taking prace anywhners In oy’ wn

ems and cortrels Lo ensure mcdern

business or inany of our supply chains, consisient
sur obligations under the Modern
5 We expec! the same high siandards from all

with ¢
z01
of aur contractors, suppuers and otner pusness

partners. As par: of our contracting procesces, we

Stavery Act

expect our 3u :-pliers to comely with the Modern
Slavery Act 20

rsiole for presaring the
firancial siatements in

Anrual Reoort and th
accordance witn applicahle law and regulator.

requires the directcrs to pregare
errents for each finarcal year, Under

ompany lav
financ’al stat
thiat law the directors have grepared the Group ang
Cermpany financial statements in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepied
Fractice (United Kingaom Accountng Stardards,
compris RS 102 "Tne Financ:al Reportng
Stamdaro apallcable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and applicable
the drectors must not approve the irancial
less they arg satushed that they give a

Accourting

law) Under company law

staterments ur
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rue ang far view of the state of affarrs of the Growp
and Company and of the profit or loss of the Croup
and Comgpany for that penad. In preparing the
firiancial statements, the direcrars are reguired to:

= select su'tanle accounting pci ces and then apply

thnem consisiently,

= state whether applicadle Un'ted Kingdorr

J g Standards, conrprisng FRS 102, nave
 followed, subject 1o any material depariures
i and explained in the fnanca:

+ mMake Jucgements and acoourtng estimaies that

e reascnable anc prudent, and

+ prepare the financal statercents on the geing
concern Basis unless it

s inapproprate o
resume that the Group ard Company w
ontinae in busiress

(\

-

e directors are a.so resoorsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group ana Comosry and henc
for tak rg reasonable stecs for the preventicr ar"d
cetecton of frand and other rregu.anties

The drectors are responsible for keeprg adecuate
ccourting records that are sufficient (o shaw and
28

olain the Croup and Company’s transacuors and
5Ci0se with reasonable accuracy at any tme the

'I"Q_(T‘Q)

nancial posticon of the Group and Company and
enate thcm to ensure that tre fnanciat staterrments
comrply with tne Comoanies Act 20060,

Tre directors are resoorsiole for the mante-ance
and integrty of the Company's wessite Legislation
ir the Jnted Kingdom governing the greparst on

T other prisdichors

semrinauor of financial statenerts may o ffar

As parmitted by the Arficles of Association, the
drectors have tre benefit of an mder“mt/ which is
a gualfying trird-sarty Indermnity provision as
defned by section 234 of the Comrpanies Act 20056,
The mdemnity was in force throughiout the last
Anancial year ana s corrently i force

-nthe case of each director n office at tre date the
Directors Report 15 aopfovw

o 50 far as the qreclor is aware, there is no relevart
audt irforration of whicrk the Grour and

Company's auditors are unaware, and

« they nave taken aill the steps that thay cugnt
to have taken as a direzior in crder to ma<e
thernzelves aware of any raievant audit
nformation and o estanlish that the Group and
Company's auditors are aware of thar

This confirmaton s given and shouwtd be :ntercreteu
in accordance wit the provisions of section 418 o
the Comparies Act 2006

Zrnst & Young LLP having been apocinted in 202
have indicated their willingness (o oe reappoén:ed
‘or another term and will be progosed far re-

aops ntrent 1m acoordance win section 485 of the
Comganies Act 2006,

The Diractors’ recort was aporoved by the Board of
Directors on 16 December 2022 and ygded on s
benalf oy

PS Latham

_recior
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financ al statements of Fern
Trading Lirmited (“he Parent Company'} ang it
sLbsidianes {tre "Group’) for the yvear endea 30

June 2022 whicn comonse the Group Stalernent of
Comprehenzive Income, the Growp and Parent
rment of

Casa Flows, the Croup and Farent Statemrent Of

Compzsny 3alance Sest, the Group State
Changes in Equity and the related notes 1tc 29,
ncluding & surnmary of signifcant accounting
solicies The financisl reporung framework that has
peen appiec N ther oregaraticn is applicable law
and Un.ed Kingdor Accouring Standards
nciuding FRS 102 "Tre Firancia. Reporting
Stangard applcabie in the UK and Repustic of
nited Kingaorm Generally Accepted
Accounting Pract:icel

Irelang” Ly

In our opirten, the finarcat staternants,

« give arue and far vew of the Group's and of the
Farent Company's affairs a< at 20 June 2022 and

of the Group's preit for the year then ended,

+ nigve geen properly presared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractice: ard

¢ nave Deen pregarec in sccordance with the

reguirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Bacis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Internar onal Standards on Auditing 1UX) (ISAs (LK)
and anpicable law Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further descr.bed in the Auditor’s
respors-biaties for the audit of the finarcal
statements section of cur report We are
ndepencent of the Group it accerdance with the
etnical requirements that are relevant 1o sur audit of
the financizl statements in the UK, incluaing the
FRC's Ethy
other ethical responsibiliies in accordance wiith

cal Standarc, and we have fulhlled our

these requirements

A ‘1< -

We pelieve that the audit evidence we have

ohizined i< sufficiert and appropnate 1o provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relaling Lo golng congern

audiung the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors use of the going

ﬁ

oncerr bats of accocunting in the preparation of
tre financia. statements 1S appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have
not identifed any rmatenal uncerainties relaling @
everts or conditiors that, individually or colectively,
may cast signifcant daubt on the Sroup and “arent
Company's abily 1o contiriue as a gong concerr
for a period of twewe months

financial statements are authorised for iszLe,

from when the

Qur responsibilit ez and the responsibilities of
the drectors with respect to going concern
are descriced in the relevant sections of this
rencrt. However, becadse nat all future events or
conditions can ke precicted, this statement s not a
gluaranies as to the Group's abl.ty t© continue as a
goINg CCNCen.

Other information

The ather information comprises the informaton
included in the arnual repcrt, other than th

financial staterrents and our auditor's report,
thereon The directors are responsinie for the other
information contained witnin the anrual report

Cur opinion on the financal statemenis does rot
cover the other informat cn ang, excert to the

extent otherwise expacitly stated in this repors, we
co not express any form of assurance conclusion

trereon

Cur responsibiiity 18 10 read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether tne other
information s materially nconsistent with the

financial staterrents or cur knowlaedge obtained in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

tne course of the audit or otherw:se appears to e
matenatly missated if we
irconsistences or

ident’y such materai
coarent maternal miss
we are reguired o determ:ne wietn
o a matenal msstaterent in the Inancal
staternents themse
have perf
materiat missiatement of the other information, we
are required tC raport trat fact

If, pased on the wor< we

orrred, we cowdude that thiere 15 &

We have noth ng to report i this regard.

Opinions on other matiers prescribed
by the Companies Act 2008

In our orinion, based on the work urdertaken ir

me course of the audit

e the informauon given in the 5t

rateqic reporl and

the Srectors report for the financal year “or
2d |

win.ch the fingncial staterrents are prapare

consistent with the financal statements; ana
= the Strategic regort ang Directors’ repart »
been prepared i accordarce with apoticasle

legal requirerents.

Matiers on which we are required to
report by exception

Ir the fight of tne knowedge and understanding ¢
the Group ard the Parert Company and s
ervironment obta ned i the course ¢f tne audit,
we have not icentified materal rrisstatements in

e Strategic

recort or Drectars renort.

We have nothiig to report in respect of the
following matters i retation to whck tn

Comrparies ACT 2006 recuiras L5 10 renort to you f

[our CLiron

e the Farent Co

-
N agreerment thh fre zocount ng records erd

returns, o

Tatements,
er this gives rise

o certain disciosLres of Diteciors remruneration

szecifed Dy law are not rade, or

+ we have not received all the rformaton and

exparationrs w = for our audit.

FD
‘\
‘L.'
C

=

Responsibilities of direciors

As exglained more fuly n the Directors’

resporsibitiies slaiement set cul on pages 29 an

20 tre Directors are responsicle for the preparation
fied

> the finarcisl staterments and for being satis]

tat they gve & true ard fair view, and for such

internal control as the Jire

LD L‘g

Zirectors determine s

recessary 1o enable the preparator of franca:

staternerits that sre free from matenial
e o

russtatenr et wnetrer du fraud or eror

Ir prepaning e finarcial statements, tne Directors

are fespo—ﬁswb\e for assessing the Groug's and the
Parent Compary's ab ity 1o continue as a going
concern, d'sc.osng, as appicable matlers related

o going Concernt anc U’S\HQ the Jomg Concern

o

zsis of accounting unless the Cireciors eithe
rtend o vgugiate tne Group or the Parent
Company or 10 cease operations, or have no

eglistic aiterratve but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the sudil
of the financial statemants

Cur obiectives are tc obtain reasonatle assurance
abodt whiether the financia. stacernents as a wnole
are fres frorr rratenal misstaterment, whetrer due
to fraua o error and 1o 1ssue an auditor's repor!
tratinc.udes our oprion. Reasonable ass.arance s
a high level of assurance, but is ot a guarantee that
2 acd® corducted in accordance with 1545 LK

rech a mater goissigtemsri wren 1

¥ erits can anse frors fraud or eror
gra are cors cered wateral fngivduslly o the
d

adgregae, they couls reazorsbly be exgeciea to
i €

> SCOoromIL Geaisions of Jsers fa<en on
o

STCMeniz.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as 1o what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting rregularities, Including
fraud

iregulanties, including fraud, are instarces of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedares in lirne with our re aponsibmties, outlined
above, o detec s nregulanilies, including fraua. The
risk of not detect:ng a materal misstaternent due c
fraud is higher thar the risk of not detecting ong
resulting from error, as fraud may nvolve deliberate
concealment by, for example, forgery ar niertioral
rnisrepresentaticns, or through coilusicn The
aextent to wrich our procedures are capable of
detecung irreguiarities, includirg fraud is detaiied
elow Rowever, the primary responsibilty for the

O'

prevemon and detecton of fraud rests with botn
those charged with governance of the entity and
rnanageme'“-t

Our aporoach was as cllows

« We obtained zn understanding of the legal ana
regulaiory frameworks that are applicable to the
Group end defermined that tne most sgrmihcant
are those that reiate to reporting framework (FRS
102 and the Comgparnes Act 2006)

+ We understood how Fern Trading L'mited 12
comp.ying with those frameworks by making
erquiries of management, those charged witn
governance and those responsible for legal
ard comp:ance procedures as to any fraud risk
frameawork within the entity, Includirg whether
a formal fraud risk assessrentis commeted We
carroborated cur enguines through review of the
following docurmeniauor or performance of the
foliowing procedures
» OCtanng an understanding of enuty-level

rtrols and considericg the influence of the

cortrol ervirgnment;

= obtain'ng an understarding of polucies and
procecures ir place regarding compiance
with laws and regulaions. includ.ng how
compharce with such colicies 's moritered
ana enforced: obtaiming an understanding of
managernent’s process for identifying ara
respond rg to fraud risks, including programs
ano controls cstablisned 10 adoress risxs
denifieq, or otherwise preven:, deter and
detect fraud, and how sen o management
monitors those programs and conurals,

« review of poard meeting rminutes 11 the period
and up tc cate of s(_f;zr‘.g.

v We assessed the cuicenubility of the Group's
financial staterments to material missiatomeant,
ncluding now fraud rright occur by hotding &
discussion withun the audit team which ncluded:

» identification of relzaied parties,

= undersianding tne Group’s business, the

ntrol envarcnmentt and assessing the inkerent
Kk for re.evant assertions at the sign:ficant
count evel nciuaimng discussions with
managernant (¢ gair an undersianding of
those areas of tne firancial statements which
were susceptibie to fraud, as identifed by
management; and

« consigared the controls that the Group has
estabishied o address rizks identhed by
the entity - that otherwise seek to prevent,
deter or defect fraud inciuding gaining an
understanding of the enuty level cortrols anc
pohicies that the Group applie

« Bazsed on this understand ng we designed our
audit procedures 1o igentify nor-comp. ance
with such laws and regulatcns Our procedures
nyolved testirg cf journa: entr es through
scurna. analytics tools, with focus an manual

i
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusuat transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could alfect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or reguiatory
authorities,

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial staterments is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.arg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's repart.

Uls . P by P LOIS |
RN DV TREy g

This report is made sotely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur augit
work has heen undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
far no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body. for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

FoonfcbZo /\L—L—P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behall of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the vear ended 30 Juns 2022

2022
MNate '000

e A Eat o mbab wan o TemsBed T o at anT ONMEER AT EANOERTRNRIRS o m et R ey 6 A T e Tra m P e

Ramower P e
, , 7 (410,883)
Gross proht 300,947

Admunisirative expenses (258,251)

Operating profit/{loss} 2 42,696
Other ncoire z 3,550

ncome from other fixed asser invesimonis 5,249
Share of aperating profit in joint venture -
Proft on disposal of subsic anes ard jomt venture & 29,533
Cianor interest reecervab.e and similar income £ 130

‘ntﬂrf—'ﬁ 2 aijH jnr* :wmtd o 7; 9es 3] (33 554)

{restated)
2021

L E000,

425302
(221,277

204025
(231 844)
(27.819)
G454
44G
1755
28,568
997
(36,067)

Proﬂtl(loss) before taxatlon S 47 604
Tax on profit/lioss) 7 {16,294)

(22.663)
(8,349)

Proﬂtl(lossi‘f;;“tme ﬁnanc:al year e 31.310

Attributable to Fern 37,932

Minority interest (5,622)

31,310

{31.012)

(27.008)
@007

(71 012)

All results relate to continu g activities, Note 26 detaits the prior penad agjustmoents.

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022
£'000

{restated)
2021

£000

Profit/(loss) for the financial year o B o ‘ 31,310 ,

Other comprehensive income
Movenents in cash flow hedges 77,985

Foreign @xchorqe gaw‘"ﬁsg, on re'(ar* {a‘ucm of 5t be"’i\dflE’S 18 561

Other comprehensive income for the year 96 546
Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856

Attributable to
« Owners of the parent 134,478
* Non-controlling interests (6,622)

127,856

17645
(4000
13 638
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™

CGroup balancs sheet a3 2% 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
Mote £ 000 £000
F|xed T .o AV oy Uit et Y SO O R
Irtangiole assets 8 557,708 576729
Tangibre assets 9 1,893,430 1,581,682
Irvestments 10 35,452 11,600
TTZLCLCL S 2 486 590 2169421 7
Current assets -
Stocks 12 184,479 94,711
Cebtors § neluding £138m (2021 £1£ 2m) 13 623,161 588,002
due aftor more than one year)
Tash at pa k fﬁ ir hard 11 255 415 1?44/’8
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year e W(E“swswibz) (e02, org}"
Net current assets T 807 903 66? 132
't;;talassets less current Ilabllntles - : ”73,294 4§3 ‘? 8J2 553 7
Creditors: amounts falllng due after more than one year T (992 425} h 993 739) ‘
ﬁr;v15|ons fo”r”l;abllltles S i7 ) (82 620) ) {41.372)
Netassets 2219448 18878342
Capital and reserves
Callec Ly share capnsi 13 161,662 145,676
Skars prerniurm account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow hiedge rescrve 63,006 {14,979)
Froft ard loss accoun: {2, 770) 136,049
Total shareholders funds“m 2 222,349 17,857347.&1
NON-Cor {2, 901) 3721
Caputat employed 2 219 448 1.887. 84?

Note 26 details tre pricr perad agjustments

statemrents

a

" Sages 4D WO YL Were anpr
1

Z
-~
& December 2022 ard are s.gned on therr paraf by

PS Latham
Cirrector

Registered rumber 126

O\
tn
[#)]

ved Dy tre Board of drectors on
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021

. S— hote LEO0D i 2000
e s s e e

e 10 2,539,978 2116366

2539978 2116366
Current assets

Debuors i3 39,888 50,383
Cash at bank and in nand 11 6,422 1 523
- - a30 51906
Creditors: amounts falling due withinoneyear 14 (448) (2924}
Net current assets S 45,861 N 28 jﬂém
Totalassets less current tiabilities 2,585,839 2145348
Net assets - o l o .—”“-‘---2,585,839“ o 21143.348
Capital and reserves

Caliea up share capital 1R 161,662 148,676
Skare prern wrn acoount 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791.14%
2rofit and lass accourt 72,838 31 409
Total shareholders’ funds T - 2585839 2145348

The Comgany has elected 10 ta<e the e reﬂ“ptw-n under section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not to
present tne Company profit and 1oss account. The proft for the inarncal perod dealt with ir the financiai
statements of the Company was L2356, 744 Of‘O 2021 loss of £157,504,000)

These Ainancial statements on pages 35 to 92 were approved oy the Board of directors on 26 December 2022
and are signed on their oehall by

PS Latham
Cirector
Registerad number 12601636
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Group statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow

share premium reserve hedge

capital account reserve
{restated}

E£'000 £'000 E'C00 £'000

wearatlJdaly

35 stated;

ST ——

138.435 - 1535569 H2 837

Fror penad

- — — Sy
adjLstments Inode 26 3575

Balarce as at ©Juy

2020 rogtated;

138435 - 1599621

‘or the “nana.a.

Changesir rr
vaLe of fase
redaes irscts

- - - 44584

exnense for b - - - 4383
rrzstated,;
Non-contreling

Ulosation of merger

resarys

Shares suie
tre year

11685 173,118 - -

(444 - - -

142676 173118 1440,257 114.979)

Y S A R et T T S BT H RN T TR s e (2

Profit Total Non-
and loss share- controlling
account holders’ interest

(restated) funds
{restated)
E'000 £000 £'000 £'000

N e e, D5 F P RRERARE R B o pn,

(41185) 1668582 9,570

Capital
employed
(restated)

B g IS AT

1.678,552
13828 7703 B 17703

{27 326} 1686685 957G 169625

127008 127,008} 4,007 31012

- 44,983 - 44,983

(323 (333 - (333)

{333 44,650 - 424650

(27338 17645 14,027 13428
1831 1831 {1,842} (1%

- 184,802 - 184,803

(6.399; 16.843) - €843

136,045 1,884,121 3721 1887842

Balance as at
1 July 2021 (restated)

149,676

173,118 1,440,257

Profit for the
financial year

Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985
hedges

Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - -
of subsidiaries

{14,979)

136,049 1884,121 3721 1,BarBs42

{6,622} 31,310

37,932 37,932

- 77,985 - 77,985

18,561 18,561 - 18,561
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and toss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest :
funds l
E'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £000
Other
comprehensive _: - - - 77.985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
the year o
Tatal comprehensive C
income/(expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 155,312 - {195,312) - - -
reserve
Sharesissuedduring S48l 14 956 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203750
the year
Batance as at
30 June 2022 61,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770) 2,222,339 (2,901) 2,219,448

Note 26 details the prior penod adjustments

Company statement of changes in eguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capitat account account funds
E'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Balan:ie alincarpordtion 7 - - - - -
_o3 forthe francialyear o L. usison gsis04)
Utiisat o of merger reserve - - [125.312) 195 312 -
Towl comprenersie acome o~ 7777 Tuosza) 37808 157504
Snares issasc dunrg the year 150120 173118 1986457 - 2308695
Srares cancelled durnng tne year [444j - - (6,399] (6,843}
Balanceasat30June2021 149,676 173118 1791145 31,409  2,145348
Profit for the financiat year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312} -~
Total comprehensive income - - 195312 41429 236741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelied during the yaar - - - -

Batance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839




Grouvp statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

lrestated)
2021

Note 2022
£'000 L
Ela‘s-h fléws from os;:‘awtumg activities ) - ’
Brofntilossy or the Ainanc sl year attnbutable 1o the owners of the parent 37,932
Adjustments for:
Tax on proauitoss) 7 16,294
Interest recanvable and sirn iar income & {130)
Irterest payabie and other similar cnarges & 33,554
Profit on disposal of subsidiznes and joint venture 8 (29,532)
Income from oint venture -
Income from fixed asset investrents (5.249)
Arcrisat on and smparment OF mtangisle Gxed assets & 45,762
Cepreciator of targcle fHxed assels El 101,802
Non-cash staff costs 3,040
Movernerts or deyatives and fore gr exchange (18,044)
lrcrease n stock {19,829)
seifaecrease In debiors 31,022
Ircrease/ldecreass) In crodiorn (173,956)
Norn-controling mterests 19 (6,622}

L2585

41,897
Cash fiows from mvestmg actlv le; R
Purchiase of supsidiary urndertakings inet of cash acglared: {52,377)
Sale o 101,778
Purcrase of ple 335018 (322,446}
Purcnase of mtangie asier (7,222}
Furcnase of unasted vestrmens (124,203}
Sawe ¢f unisted vaziments 10 105,000
IMtarest recenes 6 130
sroome frore JoT variare e
Net cash used i in mvestlné actlwtles R (a9, 340)%“_
Cash flows from financing actlwtles - -
Procecds rram francing 201,719
Irtersst tad {32,319)
Repayrments of Ananzing (32,013)
Proceeds from share 18 203,750
Canceiaho i .8 o -
Net cash generated from ﬁnancmg actlwtles h S o o 341 1.’-7
Net (decfé&se)lmcrease in cash and cash equwalents. S 83 694
Casn ana casn ecavaerts at e beginmirg of tre year 1 B 172 478
ExCha™ge ga o5 o 2ash ard Casii equesa'ents Mw_ W2W43 -
(Eash and cash equivalents at the end of the year o i 256,415

(27.005)

8349
(997}
36,068
(28,568)
(L755)
449)
37754
84,697
8,875
(19.788)
15,7013
249,374
6,871
(4,007]

(1 7'31,

341,917

221,587
34503
{110.457)
875)
(29617
20133
957

1 O??

(306,226)

(35,552}
(212,676}
184,355

(6,399)

{70.268)

(34577)

206688

367

172478

£'COU

cle 26 detadls the prior period adiusiments,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Traaing L'mitad (the Cammipany’) s 2 private company lrmitea by shares and incorporated on 14 May
2020 Tre corngany is cornicled i Erglana, the United Kingderr and regstered uncer company numoer
12601636, The address of the recistered office 1 at 6th Floor, 33 Heloorn, Londan, England, BECIN ZHT

Statement of compliance

The Group zrd indwvdual Foanaal statements of Farn Trading Lirmited have been prepared in complance
ve 1y Urited Kingdom Account \mg “ar*dmd, meiuding Firancial Reporang Standard 102, "The Finamcial
Reportng Standard applicable in the United Kingdor and the Republc of reland (=R5 1027 and ine
Companies Act 2005

Basis of preparation of Hnancial statements

The hinanc al staterments kave been prepared on a gong corcern basis, unaer the nistorical cost corvention,

as modified by the recogniton of certain financal asssts ard babiltes measured at far v and i
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and aopi\cable accourting standards in the Umtf‘d Klﬁgdf‘r'" Tre
prinCipal accountng poucies, which nave ceen anplied consistenty throughoat the year, are set out beltw

The consolidaed financial statarrants include the results of all subsidiaries owned by e Trading Limited
as lzted i note 29 of the anrua! financal statements. Certan companies of these subsidiaries, which are
asted nonote 29 have take~ the exempt-an from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitted by
seciion 4794 of Companies Act 2006 In order to allow these sunsidiaries to take the audit exemptior, the
parert comrpary has gaiven a statutory guarantes, in bre with secnon 479C of Companies Act 2006, of all
the gutstanding net labilmes ag at 30 June 2022

Going concern

The Group's and the Company’s busingss acivities, wgether with tne ‘actors likely to affect ts future
developmert, performance and postion are set out ire Strategic Pcport or pagas 4 to 14, Tne financial

position of the Group, ts cash flows, lguididy position ard porrow:ing Tacilities are described in the Fnancia:

review QN pages 23 to 27 The prnaipal rsks of the Group are set out on pageas 16 (0 19,

The Directors pwform an annual going concern review that considers the Groug's ability o meet its
finarcial oigations as they tall due, fo‘ cerod of at lgast twelve rmonths after the date that the firancial
statements have been signed

Due to the chalienging rarker conditions maragersent have perfermed an assessment o determme
whetner there are any materal uncetaintes ansing that could cast s.gnificant doubt on the abity of the
Groun G continue as a going concarn, No significant issues have been noied ard as a conseguence, the
directers peseve tnat the Group 1s wel placed (€ manage its business risks successtully despite the current

uncecta n econamic autionok




Statement of accounting policies

It reaching tis conclusion the Drrectars have reviewed tne Snancial impact of the urcertainty on the
Group's baiarce shieet, profit and oss a

o

d cach “lows with specific consiceration giveri to the follow ng

A reverse stress est was perforred on th se case forecast
risks to the Groups hguidity position

o

of revenue of 46%, tre Gioup iz abe to

to ascerta~ what scenanos would resultin
i an unlikely sceranro of a aigrificant reducton

oerational costs and rneet a:l Latilines as they fail

due for at least 5 year from the aate of signin ak statements when utusing the avalable

faciuties wthin the Crouo

Tre Group Nas a number of fimancing faciities thar contain covenarts reguiring the Groug te maintan
specifed Ainancial ratics and cormrply with certair otrer Anancal coverarts. These firancial covenarts are
tested at least quarterly, and, at the date of this repors, the Group is ir compliance with sl its finanaial
covenants Suress tests on reasonably plausib.e scenanos such as a s gnificant recucuon o EBITEA of £4%
time have been Jsed 1o assess the covenant requ'ements for the at least the next twelve montns ard
yenarts Nave been forecast to pe met even urder the stress test scenarno, i ihe going corcern peniod

b 3Q June 2022, the Group han avaiacle cash of £256~ and headroom avaiabie of E44Im ncuding a
revolving credit facity of £210m Debt of £88m 15 due (o mature inless tran one year, with the rermrainder
of £956m payakle in maore tham cne year The Groups fac lii'es, repayrr ent aates and undrawn armounts are

set outir Note 16 Loans and Borrowings

Key accounting judgement and est 2s have been made with consderat on given to tre current
econom.C ouloox Key estimates includs loan recaveradicty, vaiuation cf work in progress,
decomrmissionirg prov's ers. mpairment of gooowll and nvestrents, business combinat’ons end hedge

accounting. Geralls are set oyt on pages 500 51

N the above assessment of current economic conairions anc the mpzact on the Greug's finandia.

oo
[}
%
—~ D
[#%
3 0

quidity ard financial covenants, the cirectors nave concaded at the Group and Company has

adeguate resources @ contnue 1 operationai existence for the next 12 manths. Thus, they contnue o
adout the geng cence Bagis of accounting in prepanng the annwal firanca. statements

Exemptions for gualifying e as under FES 162

FRS 102 atows a qualifying ennty closure exempiions, subject to carta n conditions, which rave
beer complied wtn, cciuding noufication Jf, ard no opjecton 0, the use of exemplicns by the Company's
sharehclders.

The Cempany has taken zdvantage of the “olowg exemotcns

from orepanng 3 stalement of Cash fliows, on tre tasisthatit s a
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staterrent of cash flows, included -n these irarg al starermearss, inc.Lged twe Comgarny s cash frows;

no fror tre financial metrument d.s recrd red under FRS 102 paragraghis 1122 1o t148A and
paragracrs 2 26 10 12 29 22 the informat on s orowded n the consol oaed franc al staremert
disclosures,

A from discosing the Corrpary key management persoroel Comoensaton, as rezurred by ~RI 102

caragraoh 23.7
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Basis of consotidation

The consclidated financial statemeants :nclude tne results of Fern Trading _irmites and ail itz subsdiary
undertakings made up o tne same accounting date Al intra-group balarces, tranzactions, ircome and
expentes are eliminated in fud o0 consalidation The resuits of subsiclary undertakings acquired or disposed
of aunng the penoc are included ar exc.Lded from the ncorrme staterrent from the effective date of

acguisiuen o disposal

Al undertakings over wrich the Group exercises contro., ng the power to govern the firancial and
opsratnyg polivies s as 1o ublain senefits from therr activities, are conscudated ag subsidiary undertakings,
Whe SJbtﬂdsur_/ has different accounting policies to the Groun, adjustrmeants are made ¢ those
subs.;d'ary financial staterments to appy the Group's accourting palicies when grepanng tne consolidated
finarcial statements,

Ary sulbsidiary undertakings or aszociates sold or acguired dunng the year are included up to, or fram, tme

[¥al

dates of change of contrci or change of signifcant infilence respeciively

Where tne Group has written a put option over shares nela by a non-controling interest, the Groug
dereccgrises the non-controiling :nterest and irstead recognised cortingent deferred considerabion Labily
witrin other payaoles for the estimated amount likely 1o oe pa'd to the ron-controlling interest on exercise
of thoss options. The residual amcunt, represeriing the difference between any consideraton paid/payabie
ard the non—contrommg irxterest's srare of net assels, 1s recognised as goadwiil Movements i the
sstimated liabiuty after iritial recognition are recagrised as goodwil

Forelgr currendy

i. Functionat and presentation currency
The Groug fnancia. statemerts are presented in sound ster.ng and rounded to thousangs,

The Company's functional and presentation currency 1s powna steding and rounded to thousands

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated ino the ‘unctional currency using the spot exchange rates at
the dates of the transactons. At each period end foreign currency monretary iterms are transiated using the
ctosing rate Non-moretary iterms measured at histor cal cost are translated using the excharge rate at the
date of the transaction and nor-monetary items measdred at “air value are measured using tre exchange
rate when fair value was determined Foreigr excharge gans anc osses resulting from the settlement of
transacticns and from the translat on at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and ueblities
dencrinated in ‘creicn currenc.es are recogrised ir e proht and loss accourn,

All foreign exchange gams and losses are presented in the profit ang (oss account within ‘adminisirative

expenses’

iii. Translation

The tracing results of Group undertakings are transiated into pounds sterling at the average exchange rates
for the year The assets and Labilites of averseas uncertakings, incl udrn g goodwill ard fair value adjusiments
arising on acqulzwt\on, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjustrnenis

r<ing from the retransiation of opemmr‘ retinvestments and from he tranzlation of the profits or losses
at average raes are recognised 'n ‘Other comprenensive ircorne’ and allocated to non-controilng interess

as approprate.
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Turnover
The Group operates 3 number of classe: of business Revenue is derived by the fol.owing,

+ Fnergy
Turagver from the cale of elecricity generaied by solar farms, wind generatirg as

pla~ts and biorass ana landhll sites is recognized o an accruals bazis in tre perod in wrick it s
generates Hevenue from long-term govenment backed offtake agreements, suchk as the Rerewab.e
Obbgator Certhcation "ROC) scheme ar2 accrued 'nthe pericd « whch if relates to Turnover from the
sale of fertibiser by iomass and landfil busresses is recogrised o piysical dispatch,

* Healtncare
Turnover s recogr.sed when the sigrificant nsks and rewards of ownarship of retirerment properues have
passed to the buyer (on lega. complation the amgount o revenue car be recogrised reliably, and it's

o
protatle shat the eco

"o ¢ benefits associated with the transaction wit “ow 1o the entity Turnowver
15 recognised at the fair value of tne consideration recewved for hea thcare scovices prov'des i the norrnal

course of busingss, a~d s shown riet of VAL Turngyver s recogrised based on the date tne sarvicc s

+ Lending
Tur~over represents arrangement fees ard nterest on loans provided to customers, net of any values
added tax. Loan interatt 1s recogrised on an ascrual basis ir ine w th contraciua. terms of tne loan

sQreament, Arrangerment fees are spread over the lfe of the loan to wh ch tney ralate

= Fibre
Turnover is recogmised at the fair value of ine congideration recaved for interer connectivity and related
IT services provided n the normal course of business, ard s shown ~et of VAT, Turmover 15 recogrised
bated on the date the serv.ce s provided
+ House bunding
Turncver is recogrisec on ega. completion of the sale of property, lard a~d commercia. spaces Turmover
from rousi~g asscaation contracts is recogrises by reference (o the value of work completed as a
proporton of tre total cortract value,

Emplovee benefils

Trhe Group orovices a rane
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ii. Defined contribution pension plan
A defired cortnbut on plan s a pension plar darder whch the Group pays Fxed contnbutors into a
a

senarate ertty. Snce tne co~trbohons nave neen geid the Grous has ro fuartner paymenrt obligations,
The cortnoulions are recogrised as ar experse wher they are aue Arounis rat oad are showr in
aoCrualis 1n the oalance sheet The assets of tre p.an are held separately “om e Group in migependently

iIstered ‘unds.
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iii. Share-based payments

Casr-setled chare-hased payments are reeasured at farr value at the balance sheet date. The Gfoup
reCoon ses a lakility &t ine balance sheet date based or these fair values, taxirg into account the esymated
aurrber of urits that wll actualy vest and the current proportion of the vesting pernod.

Cranges in the value of this liability are recogrised in the income statement
G 3
The Groug has no equity-setiled arrangemenrts

Finance cosis

Finance costs are charged o the profir ard loss account over the term of the debt using the effective
interest rethod so that the amount chargaed s at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs ar

instially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capsal instrument and released o The

a

ocrofit and loss account over the rerm of the gebt

Current angd deferred tax

Tax s recogrwzsed n tre statement of income and relained earnings, except that a change att-butable to an

item of Incore and expersa recognised as oiner comorehersive ncome or to an item recogn sed directly
1ecuity 15 a'so recognised in other comprehensve income or directly @ eau by resoectively

The current ircome tax charge 15 ca.Culated on the basis of tax rates ard laws that have peen enacted or
sabstart vely enacted by the halance sheet date ir the countries whera the Company operaes and
gererates ncome

Deferred palances are recogmised in respect of all trning differerces that nave crigirates but not reversed

a
by e Balance shieer cate, excepr that

« Tne racognition of deferred tax assets i< limited to the extent that it s prebable that they wil vered
agairst the reversal of deferred tax liakilines or other future taxab e proats; and

» Any deferred tax balances are reverseg If and wnen all conditions for retaining asscciated tax allowancas
have been met

[Deferred tax balances are rot recognised in rescect of permanent differences except n respect of business
combinations, when deferred tax 18 recognised on tne aifferences belween the fair values of assets acguired
and tne future tax geductons availaole for them and the differences cetween the fair values of labilities
acqured and the amaourt that will be assessed for tax. Deferred 1ax s determned using tax -ates and laws
that have been enacied or subsiantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Business combinations and goeodwill
Business cor-binzt ons are accounted for oy apply ng the purchase method.
The cost of a business combination s toe ‘air value of the consideration given, labiuties incurred or

assumed and the equity instrurnents 1ssued plus the costs directly attributaple to the business comupinanon,
Where contral is achieved i stages the cost 1s the consideration at the date of each trarsaction

On acguisition of a business, far values are atirnbuted to the identifiable assets, hamilues arnd contngent
Cilites unwess the fair value carnot te measured relab.y, in which case the Jalu(:' is Incorporated as
oodwill. Wnere the fair va.ue of conungent taklines canrot be reliably measured they are disclosed

ori the same basis as other contirgent Labiites

wass

e
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Gocodwll recognized represents the excess of tre fair va‘\ue and directiy atnbutaoie costs of the purchase
corsideratien over the far values to the Group's interest in the idervifiab.e ret assets, uabitities and

cortingant liabiuties acquied,

o

On acquistorn goodwill is allocatea to tash generating units (COU'S) that are expected to benefit from
tre cormbarnauor.

Goodwill 1s zmortised over its expected useful life which 1s determ ned based on :he estirated lifespan of
the assets acquired. Whare the Group 1s unable to rmake a reliabie estimate of usetul sfe, goodwill s
amortised over a pencd Not exceeding ten years. Goadwll is reviewed and assessed for 'mpairment
irdicators or an annJat ba:‘;a wd any irparment is rged to the profit and loss.

Tangibie Hyed assels

Tangih.e xed assets are stated at cost less deprecaton. Depreciation 15 provided at rates calcuated o wrete
off the cost of fixed assets, lass tnair estirated reswual value, over their expected useful bves. Deprecation
commences from the date an asset is brought intg service Land and a3sets i the course of consuction

are nol desreciatec. The estimated useful Lves are as ‘cliows:

7/ to 4°/ tha\gkt ine

; 5/0 sfra\mt Ime

Assets in the course of construction are states at cost. These assets are ot aepreciated uniil they are
avalabla for us

ar'ce incwcate that residua. value

Whrere factors, such as technological advancerrent or cranges in rarket
or useful Lie rave changea, the residua’ vawe, useful life or depreciation rate are amended prospectvely (o
refiect the new circumstances The aisets are rev ewead for imparrrrent If the above factors inaicate that the

carrying armount may oe mpaired

T ams He '’ SOOSale are r ! v oompart th oo tr e carrying ar cunt and are
ZSains and losses on disposals are determinec by comparing the procesds with the carmying cunt and are
recogised withio profit or losg

Emiangih&e assels

intargib.e a326ts are STated ai Cost iess acoJmulatec amorusat on and accu~uiated 1Impa "ment [osses.
.43 7g ke suzigh-ine methced, to allocate the deprecabls amount of the assels
o

Lues overirar estmated weefu, lives, as f

n admimisiratve exgenses

Development ngnts relate to planrng corsart to nu 2 a solar farm end a wind “arm acquired or acguisitor

=
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Where facters, such as charges 1n market price, indicaie tnat residuzl value or useful life have cranged, the
residual value, useful life or arrortisation rate are amended prospectvely 1o reflect the new crcumstances.

The assets are reviewed for imps rmiert)if the above factors indicate trat thie carrying amount may

hemparec

Leases

Atinceptor the Group as g'emmer“lg that transfer the nght to use asses. T1e assessment considers
whether the arrangement i, or containg, a lease based on tne subsiance of (ne arrangement and wrether
the (ease snouic be classfed as either 3 ﬁr‘wance lease or ar operating lease

Leases of assets that rarsfer substantialy all the rsks and rewards incidental (o ownershp are classifie
finance eases Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of th

leased asset and depreciated over the sharter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset

D Cl.
oy}
o

Assers are assessed for imparment af each reporting date.

Leases that do not transfer ail the risks and rewards of ownershio are claszifica &5 operamg leases.
Payrments unaer operaiing legses are charged to the profit and loss accourt on a straight-une basis over the

pencd of the lease

investments

The Compary holds irvestments in a subsidary at cost less accumulated impairment losses. If an
Irnparment 10ss s subseguenty reversed, the carrying emount of the irvestment s increased 10 the revised
esumaie of its recoverabie amount, but orly o the extert that the ravied carrying amodnt does not exceed
the carrying arnount that would have been determined hac no impairrment .0ss been recogn sed i pricr
periods. A reversal of an mpairment loss is recognised 10 the proft and loss account,

LLash

Casr includes cash in nand and deposits repayabe o~ demana Restricted cashi regresents cash for which
the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which regulstory or legal requirements restrict
the uce of the cash.

Stocks

Raw materia.s, spare parts and consurmables are vawed at tne lower of cost and net realisable value Where
necessary, a provison s made for obsolete, Slow—movmg and defective stock Costis determinad on the
first--n, Fret-out (FIFO) merod.

Fuel stocks (MBM and lister] are vaiued on an average cost basis over one to two months ard provision for
uniusable litter is reviewes mortrly ard applied to o -site stock

Of straw Nas cean valued at the nistorical cost per tonne of straw, A provisiom for unusabie straw
is identifed on an individual stack ba nd 1s reviewed monthly Stocks are used an 3 first in, first out

is by age of straw

t/l

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valled at the lower of cost and ne: realisable value to the Group

Stocks of property deveopment work in progress (WIP') are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value Cost comprnses direct materals and, where appicable, direct labour coste and those overkeads that
Il

Fave been rred 0 bringirg the stocks to ther present locations an condition




-
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At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made for rparrment Any excess of the carying amount of
as ah irgarment o
in the profit a

stocks over its estimaied se ling price (@53 costs to complete and sell s recog

ed
through the profit anc ioss accourt Reversals of imparment (0382t 4 jslslet

loss account

Avcrusd Incoms

Accrued income on lcans i3 Ca e of Imterest set oJt in the WGan conrac

P

culates atther <. Energy income 1s
1

rate
accrues over the pericd in whic gereraied

Deferred income

Ceferred income is recogn sed in accordance with the terrs set outin the conact Deferred incorre s
released 1o the profit and loss account in tha percd o wich it relates.

Financiad instruments

Tre Group nas chosen o adept Sections 11 ang 12 of FRE 102 in respect of financial nstrurentis

Financisl assets

Basic fnancial assets, includ ng rade and other receivab es and cash and nank baances are intially
recognised at transaction prce, uniess e arrangement constitutes a finanacing transaction, where the

fransaction 1s messtred at the DV’GS@I’WT

t'b

of the furure receipts drscounted at a mrarkat rate of interest
mo-tised cost using the effective imerest metrod

Qu

Such assets are subsequently carned a

At the end of each reporting per o financia, assets maasured at amrortised Cost are

evidance of impa rment 17 an asset 1s imparred the imgairment loss s tre differerce ostween the carrying

amount and the presert value of the estimrated cash flows discou at the asset’ ective interest

s
(%3]
Q
3

L=

3
Q
@
-

rate. Tre imoarmert 055 s recognised 1in proit or

Othear Snanciat assets, noUCINg investmenrts neguity nstruments whicn are nct subsidianes, aszociates or
joint ventures, iritiaity measured at fair valae, which s normaly the transaction price. Sucr azsats are

subsequeﬂtfy carr, eJ at fair value and the changes in far vawe sre recogn sed in profit or iass, excent that
INvestments in eguity instruments that are not puslicly traded and whaose fair values cannot oe measLrac

relzky are measured af cost iess impairmen:

F'nancia e contractaal nghts t© the cash flows frors the asset expire or

are settled, or (b} substar \al\] ali the r\=R< arid rewards of the owrership of the asset ae transfered tc
another garty or ic ntrc, of the asser has beern transferred to anotner garly who has the oractical abiity

o ourrlateraly sel the asset o an wrrelated tard party witrout imooseg adoitiona. restrctisns

ron fellow Sroun comparnies
ﬂ-iia.}y recog7ises at transaction orce, Jurless tre arrangermeant constitutes 2

a
tre deot irsrument 1§ rmeasures at the gresent value of the futurs rece o3
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ekt instrurments are subsequently carded at amortisec cost, using the effective interest rate method. Fees
paid on the estatlishmert of loan facilities are recagnised as transachion costs of the an o the extent that
it iz probable that sorne or all of the faziity will be drawn cown 0 ihs case, tne fee |s deferred untid the
draw/-down orccurs, 1o the exten: tnera is Nno evidence that it 15 probabie that some or ail o the facility wil
be drawn cowr, the fee is cagitalised as 3 pre-payment for lquidity services ana amortised over the period
of the faclity to wnich it relates,

Trade payables are obligations o gay for goods or services that have been acguired 1 the ordirary course

of buzsiness ‘rom supoliers. Accountds payabla are classined as current lalilties if paymertis cue wiinin one
year or less If not, Iney are presented as norn-current lacrit.es Trace payaties are recognised init.atly at

tranzaction price and subsequently meazurad at amorhised cost using the effective interest method

Financial habilities are derecognised when the sability 18 extnguished, tnat s when the contractusl oblgauon
s discharged, cancelled or expires,

Provisions
Provs ons are made wirere an event Nas taken place that cives the Group & 'egal or constructive chligaticn
thiat probabiy requires cetllement by a transfer of eco~omic benefit, and a relsbie estimate can be made of

the amount of the nbligation

Prowvis ons are cnarged as an experse to the proft and loss accodrtin the year that the Group becormnes
aware of the obligatton, anc are measured ar the best est mate at the palance sheet date of the exgendiure
raquired to sattle the obligation, ta<ing :nto account retevant risks and unce-tairties

Hedging
The Grous apolies nedge accounting for transact:ons entered into to manage the casn fiow exposures of
borrcwings. Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are des gnatec az cash
flow hedges of floaling rae borrow:ngs Charges in the farr valugs of denvatives designated as cash flow
nedges. ard whick are effective. are recagnised drectly in equity Any ineffectiveness in the bedging
relationship (oeing the excess of the curmuiative change in falr value of the hedging instrument since
nception of the hedge over tre cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged e since inception of
the nedge! s recognized T the proht and loss

+

The gain or 1oss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the proft and less in
accoroance with the cash flows of the hedged item Heage accounting is d scontinued when the ~edging
Nstrument exores. NG 1enger meets the hedgng crieria, the forecast transact onois no longer highly
orobaic, the nedged debt instrument 1s derecogrsed or ne Fedging insirument 13 terminated.

Share capitsl

Crdinary snares issued by the Group are recagnised in equity at the value of the proceeds receved, with the
na
.

excess over nominal valug being credited to snare premium,

Hon-controlling interests
Nom—comtro\iimg interests are mreasured at their progortionate share of the aoguiree’s identfiable net assels
at the date VEI\elelal

e adlinsing,

Sehiatreis oL ]
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Koy sccounting jud gemm&ix and estimates

1

The preparztion of inarcial staierreants in compliance watr FRS 102 reguires the wse of certan critca!l

accountng estirnates It also requires managament 1o exercise ;udgement in applying the Company's

zccounting policies, Estmates ana judgements are con: \mall/ ~valugted and are based on hwszorica"

under the crrcurstances The key egt'm:ms and judgemems in prepanng th

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate}
Loans and advances to cusiomers, mcluding associated accrusd incorne talarces, are reviewed for
e

imparment ¢n a quarterly basis In consderirg the need for a provisior, management determire ey best

estmate of the expected future casr ficws cr a case by case pDasis. As ths estimate relies or a certain
numioer of assurmptions about future evants which may giffer from actua: cutcomes, IMciud ng the
baorroveer's abilty to regay interast ana capita: dus in fulure periogs, this gves nse 1o judgement as o3

whether there is a shortfall betweenr trne carrying value and tre far va.ue of the debtor kalance.

Management ricte that prov sions aganst leans and advances is a ent.cal estimate and Fave therefore
performed sens:tiv iy analys's on the pro:

The results of the senstivity aralysis conclude that a cnange

cf +/- one per cert in the amount orowced agamst the estrated balance at nisk would rave rezuned in

FZam ess/more expenditure peing chargan o 1he mcome statemeant durirg the pericd See rote 13 for the
Ln

carrymno amount of the debtors ard provisions ar 30 J 2022,

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WiP') (estimate}

Property development WiF 15 reviewed fo impairmen: on a per oaic basis 'n considering the nieed for a
provision, managertent dewermine thelr best estimate of the recoverable value Management engage an
exper! exrerng: valer 1o provice key assurmplions abour future evenis which may differ fromm actual
autcarres, mciuding property vauauons, rate of sales and develooment cos's.

o udgement as o whetaer there s & shorsfal: between e carrying valueg end ihe

as st the 30 June 2022 Poct year end, rmanagement Nave reviewed the
assumiptions used 10 aetermine the value of property development WIP and have obierved =0 changes in
performance that wouwd impact the valustior as a7 the 30 June 2022 See ncte 12 for th
of tre property development Wik

CaATYING amount

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

The Croup owns two energy gererarng sobeidiaries in Australiz which have ertered Into purcrase price

agreements (PPA) 1n 2019 a~d 2021, The PPA's i~cluae a contract for offerences "CHD T whareby the

csicraries pay/rece ve amounis from ne customer basea on the difererces vetween a fixed se'lirg once

‘an energy market. The drectors oelieve the contract is
‘ mancal tern ard e CFC s tyoical for

such arrangements Tnareors i11s Deing accounted for under FRS 102 sect o 23 a8 & "evenue contattw tr

iv. Business combinations {estimate)

The cost of a bus ness combnation s the falr vawue of tne consl

ncured glus the

osts directy attributatle to the pusres: uﬂ"b\ﬂ’*r on Fair vaiie of these CoOrbinatons s @ X8y esumae

[

aNa more detats ars proy
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decommissianing costs 1s measured at maragement's best estrmate ¢f tne present value
of the expenditure reauired 1o setile the “Uture coligation to return land on wh.eh there are onerational wind
and zolar farms, to 1t or'g nal cordition, The level of the provisions is determined o 2 significant degres by
the esdrnation of future dismartirg and restoraton costs. as well as the tming of dsmantlerrent

Wind Farms (estimate);

Maragereant note that gacommIssicning pravis ons 15 a critical estrmate and have therefore performed
sencltivity analysis The results of the sensitivity analyss Co clade that a change of +/- one per cert i the
discount rate woud have resultad n 22 Irn ircrease/decraase in the orovisior See nowe 17 for the provision
recogrised at 30 June 2022 Management Ltilize extarnal expertise to provide an estimated cost ©
dismantle and have uses 3 dscount rate of 2% 14 reflec: the time in vaile of morey and the ris<s specific
to the aohgation

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Group s requred to restore the leasea premises of the solar farm (o their ariginal cordition at the end

of the iease term A provizior was previously recognised, nowever in the current year this jusgement has

teen reassessed and managemeant believe the lessor may wich 1¢ eltner take tile of the assets for either

cortinued use or to realise vaiue througk selling the assats and as such do not believe that an outfiow is
orobable to setrle this resioration chiligancen.

UK Solar {estimate):

During the year, & th.rd party performerd an
Groups UK solar farrs The findings have resulted in materiai change in the cost estmate and therefore a
provisior has been recogrused for the first tirme on some sites The impact has resulied in a provision beirg
ra sed for £18rm 1o the balance sheet decemmissioning l\db 'U and fixed assets. As at 30 June 202 there is
no impact on the profit and loss Sites not affected a2 addressed beio

sesyment of the base cost of the decommissioning of the

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Management talieve that given the nature of these partcuiar assets, the lessor rmay wisn © either take title
of the assets for either continued use or to rea.se value tnrough seiling the assets and as such do not
beleve that an outfiow 15 probable to settle this restoration obl gation. Manageraent will continue to monitor
the situabion at each talance theet date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate}
The vawe of goodwill held oy the Group and investments in subsidary undartakings held by the Company
s reviewed annualy for imoarmert. The recoverastity of these baiances 13 corsidered with refererce o the
gresentvalue of the esumated future cash flows These calzulat.ons use cash flow crojections which extenrd
forward forecast business performarnce together with assumpticns surraunding the expected ife of the
azset, externaly prepared forecasts and vaiuations, and ary adjustiments required to the giscount rate 1o take
account of business risk The estimated present value of these future cash flows 1s sersitive o the discount
rate anid growth rate used in the caiculation, all &° whicn reguire management's judgement Testing of the
carrying value has been oerformed during the year, which has involved several scenarios being modelled.
Based on this testng ana the resulting imeairment recognised on nvestments, management believes there
15 sUfficient headroom o suppart the value of goodwill arnd investments in subsidiary entities,

Management note that impairment of goodwll and invesiments is 2 cnlica: estmate and have theraefore
performed sensitivity analysis on the grovisian Tne results of the sensitivity anaysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per centin the amounrt provided aganst tne estimazed balance at nsk would have resulted in
£5.49m less/more expenditure being charged to the income statement durnng the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amount of the goodwil and investments at 30 cune 2022
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Analysis of turnover by category

Lending actvities

bnergy operations  solar, reserve power and winc

Energy oporations — biomass ard landfi

Heaithcar

)
r

Horne budding

Fibre operations

2022

£000

42,404
365,958
223,526

45,978

25,034

8,930
711,830

2621
£000
56,552
179,820
141826
42,266
4838
425,302

‘ITnciuded nmncorne from tlealincare operatic
ard £28 O 12021 £31 Yl in olation to sery

Analysis of turnover by geography

~~~~~~~~ PO SRR TR b 8k cnnene B Erererren e a0 e

Urnired Kingoor
fLope

Rest of worid

2022

L eeresesssssewnans B rhmarrans nnadt YV TT brechEaenyy

603,911
84,433
23,486

711,830

s £174m 12020 11 2r eating to e gale of retirernent vidage unds,

2021
£000
384,795
31,893

QOther income

Liquidaied damages arg insurance proceeds

2022
£°000

2021
£000

3,550

9454
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{restated)
2022 2021

£'000 E'Q00

Amortisalion of Intangible assets o 8 37,849 32704
impamert of iMlargibie assets note 8) 7,913 -
Ceprecintion of angiple assets incte S 101,802 84,697

Aaditors’ remmureration  Compary and the Growp's consclidated

financial staiements

45 146

Auditcrs’ remuneration - audt of Company’s subs diaries 819 1134
Agditors rerrureration - ron-audit services 246 513
Auditors remuroration - taks cormplance seryces 482 672
Differerce on foreicn exchange 7772 4402

Operatng lesse rertas 13,783 7502

Note 26 d=taiis tne pnor cenod ad,ustments,

K SR PE R

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

e T R U R s R B R

sy ey B

Wares and salaries ‘ l 85,432 41,383
Social security Costs 7,041 3.809
Olher persion Costs 3,233 1676

The Grouo provdes z defired contribution schiemes for its employees in the UK. The amount recogrised as
an exopense ‘or the defined contribution scheme is showr in the tabe above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
Number Number

RO E L e .

R BT K B

Broduction S 1,032 699
Adrnin stration 631 348
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L B A T A

2022 2021
£'000 £ 0o

el L Hove e e RTINS b gD T T A kit 5 P BTSN R bt e T T VERESE A o+ TR B R b B R CRETTREER e < ST SR DIUN R8s xx na e T VINRREED

Ernoluments 176 163

Curing the year ne pension contnbutions weare made o« respect of the dreciors (2021 noreal.

The Group nas no other kay managernant (2021 nonel.

B Do e e e

A number of suosidiaries of the Group operate a cash-setiled LTIP o gualfying empicyees, whereoy
employeas render services n excharge for cash, the amcunt of woich is desermmed by reference ta the
valuator of the urderlying subsdiary Tre faic value of tme lao =t; for the awards made s meazsaured at each
recorirg date and at tne settlement Gate. Thg far valus 1s recognized over the veshng parica. The amount

s

of expense recogniced takes nto acooun: the best avalable estimar_e of the numiber of units expected o

vest under tre service and perfermandce conditiors underlying each awars granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of Numiber of

- o awards  awardds

upw \rg cutstanding Qa\a‘ e 1,914 751 1.640,000
Grarted during the oenod 1,763 563 274 7‘31

Closmg outstanding balance I, 578 314 l 914, 7!?

The tctal charge for the year was £3.133 000 (2021 £1 33£4000) and at the 20
lakbiity of £2,407.000 included within ¢creditors greater t-an one year (2071 £

6 ol

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
£'00G £ OOO

S e e D b e T IS ath dan o TR OAXE o yw o TTITURTSRIRaaas an T T Y PREAGa s 4 men T TPANREAmwALsar  TONMEANDESesoy. © B TR TCIEBEE M o

\rrw(Jt an "tamP bma“f = 130 997

Interest payabie and similar expenses 2022 2021
£000 LE 060

32192 34378
2,597 1103
{1,235) 587
33,554 36,068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Foon e e
a) Analysis of charge in year

{restatedd)
2022 2021

£000 E'000

L R T I S S At Frnasye e S R PRI SR 6 HERARA R H AR Ry w1

Current tax:

UK corporation tax charge on profit/lloss) for the year (297} 1.648
Adjusiments In respect of prior perods 3,196 (2,866}

5,641 -

Fore:gr tax suffe

Total current tax charge/icred:

8,540 1.218)

Deferred tax:

Ongination and reversat of m'ng differences 6,227 2,074
Adjustrrents in respect of prior pencds (3,741} (3.998)
Effect of change in tax rates 5,268 11,491
Totai deferred tax 7.754 9,567
Tax charge onrprofitl(loss) on ordinary activities 16,294 8,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessad for the year 1z higher (2021 kigner! than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% {2021 19%). The differences are explamed beow!

(restated)
2022 2021

£'000 £000

Profit/(loss) before tax S 47604 (21,170)

Prr(,‘,ﬁt/:’.loss) befare tax multiplied oy standard rate of -
5 4,022
corporaton w@x 1 the UK of 19% 2020 19%) 9045 (4.022)

[ ffecrs of

Expenses not deductibie for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Other effects {868} 1022
Incorne not iaxable for tax purposes (8,102) (9.351
Adjustments in respect of prio penods {545) (6,865)
Effects of change in tax rates 5,041 11.489
Totaltaxcharge fortheyear S - 16204 8.345

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Firiarce Act 2021 eracted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UX corporation taxz frem 19% to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferreg taxes on the balance sheet have been measurea at 25% (2021 25%)
wrich represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted st the balance sheet date.

hote 26 detalls ;e prior penoag adjustments.
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B

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights

GROUR e e EO0O EO0O L E00O . EO00
Cnst tuonins o obadban o PSR L e LS e« A b SRy beaca e R ble 7 idease £ R et SRRt © % WS caxn a0 % P o o AR VTSRS TR e SRR
At July 2021 ressated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acqguired through business - 30,042 4058 34,100
combiraions inore 27
Additons 2,125 - 1.040 3165
Diapesais - - (21118)
Oa 0N fars ‘mon - - 7,930
At 30 June 2022 S 3,089 743,456 S 15314 o ‘761 859
Accumulated amomsatlon - - 7 - - v
AL Juty 2020 Trestated) 107 159,902 1,034 161,043
Liaposals - {2,462) - (2.462)
Loss o trariglat on - (152} -~ (192)
Irnpalrrrent - 7913 - 7913
) harge or tl"ﬂ year 12 573;4 525 37840
At30June2022 S 1s 202475 1557 204181
Net book value . o T
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,787 557,708
ﬁ:tVBO“JLJr e ?0z7 restated) - T 8%7 o 566,700 S 9182 R _376 739 )
The gain on trarstation of foreign currency cenorinated goodwil s recegrsed In oir er comprehensive

roome Amrartizatron of goodwall s Cnargec o adminstrat.on Costs
Cetails of the subsdiaries acquirea durng the year ended 30 June 2022 can ze found in note 27

Dur nig the year tre group disposed of 2 wre “arms in Firland, as a resul £2.57 of accumu.ated goadwill
arorisal oo was recongrisad in the current year and £18 I of gooowil was reslised on the saie Gam on
sale recognised nthe proht and loss In relausn 10 this ransachor was £28m

Imipairment of £7 9 has beer recognised or gooawil 12021, rnonet

Mo asscts have been predged as seconity “or lanilites at vear end (2021 nore
Tne Corepary had no intar Jure 2022 2021 norel

Note 26 detz s the pror perod adjusiments
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IR

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated)
(restated)

Group £000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
cOgt e T A D Y A G4 5 b it o R 2 et EET L R § TR R U Conen g s sosazes nroee sz ey
Al Jaly 20T estated: 8.531 317467 1695437 77288 43,277 2,052,000
Agailiors 829 1.53% 73647 60452 238,008 374480
Comtinatons 1508 - 51,544 - sees 10
FX/far value racvernent - - 368 - 3.294 3.662
Transfers - 68 1L05& 30,936 {32,073) -
Ciepcsals 1135} - 175,851) - - (76,688)
At303une2022 10535 319,071 1745911 118,686 310,170 2,504,371
Accumulated depreciation
A1 Jay 2021 4410 90,053 414,559 1,290 - 510,318
Crarge for the year 183 17130 81,141 33248 - 101802
Disposals - - (182) (221} - (403}
Fx movernert - - (776} - - (776}
At 30 June 2022 o 4,593 o ib?,189 - 494,742 h 4417 o - 610,941
Na bOOkvalue, . . VRt oo U S
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310170  1.893,430
A 33 -JL,:V_’ lZC-21 ;fres:arurtrrred) - 4‘121‘ 227408 ‘ 1,280,878 4 2‘5‘998 4327? 1,581,6é2

Included withir tangibie assets are caputal sed finance costs directly atinputable to bringing ine asset into
use. The net carrying amount of assets held under finance leases nc uded 1 plant, machinery, fxtures and
fittings 15 £51,785,000 {2021 £51.534.000 ). Included In network assets is & provision of £1,023,000 for
ogsolete equipment and development

The Company "ad no tangible zssets at 20 June 2022 (20214 none}

Note 26 detals the prior periog adjustments
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1o

Unlisted
investments

Group B ] ) - £'000

b RISt T

Cost and net hook vaiue

AtL Dy 2621 11,000
At ons 129452
{105,000)

At30Jume2022 35452

At Z0 June 2000 ' 11,000

Total
] E'OOO‘

11000
129452

(105.000)

35,452

11,000

Subsidiary
undertakings

Company ) £'000

Cost

2211678
228,300
ggats -

At30June2022 . 2539978

F‘ur_

Accumulated impairments

AL 30 Jare 2021 1595312
Feversa, of imoarments (195,312}
Ifr'.pd\rmv—'*h -
At 3°June 2022 e e et e e e S e en = Lt +ee e e = o SR
Net book value

At 30 June 2022 2 539 978

ALBD June 2021 2 16 366

2539978

Total
£000

2,311.678
228,200

195,312
(195,312)

AR

2539978

2,116,366

Detals of related undertakirgs are sown nnote 29,

Unbsted rmvestments comonse tne Groug's no.d rg of the members capital of Ter'do LR & teﬂdmg
Buzimess, anc its starenclding in Bracke- Trading Lim wed Ferm co-founded Terco LLP in Ocicber 2012 witl
e neruon of conducing a preoorucn of its fLtre race through the carinersnp Addit s ad d sposals
Cf Lnusten ryestmients relate oanvestmants and dwesirmests in Terida L2 o line witn Ferr's cash

racu reT ety anc 10 utilise surplus furds. Fern has a email charerolding in Bracken "acing Limited from
Trne o e Fern's nvesimert i Sracken Tracitg Lrites at 30 June 2022 was £NIL 30 Jw re 2021, fnnl
Tre grectors ao At cons agr Terdo LiP or Bracker Tradmg Jimies w e susdiaty wrdertakings of Ferm
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i 5 B
Castincludes cash in 1and and deposits regayab e on demard
Restrcted cash represent b for which the Group does not have immiediate ard direct azcess or for

whilcn reguiatory or lega: requirements restrict the use of the cash

Group
2022
~£'000
Casn at hank and | 9823 117 141
P(—Jrl( T(fj Cas 60 592 55 537

Cash at bank and in hand - 256 415 172 478

Rectricted cash s comprsed of £726.000 held in Zscrow ard £53,866,000 of cash heid 1 subsigiaries with
Di-annJdal distnibution winaows

The Company fad a cash bala~ce of £6,422.000 as at 30 June 2022, rore of whicn was restricted (2621

rone)
12 o
Group

2022 2021
‘ _ £000 £000
Ash sfow 1,538 2,155
Fuel, spare pars and consumaties 26,023 18593
Praperty develsprnent Wik 156,918 77 927
184,479 94 711

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense durng the year was £120,412,00C (2021, £41,212,000;.

included In the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock value 15 a provisiorn: of £350,000 for unusalle fual
stock (2021 £453,000) Inciuding in property development WIP 15 a provsion of £928 0G0 for warranty and
site speaific provisions

There has been no impairment recognised during the year cn stock (2021 nonel No inventory has been
pledged as secunty for habilues (2021 nonel,

The Company nad no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonre)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
b

Group Company

(restated}

2022 2021 2022 2021 :

R s oo goe o
Amour:tsfalling due aﬂe::;ne year S SRR p— R £ 9 5 SR oo AR 1 SR 3 R

Loans and advances to cusiomers 137,662 16128 - -

Amounts falling due within one year :

L Qans and acyances to customers 223,239 360,384 - - i

fracie dabrors 42,050 16,121 392 8

Arnounts owen by related parties (note 24) - 3950 32,950 12751 |

Crther debtors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5008 “

- 6,603 2,527 (

54,409 6,453 - - ?

145,602 154,375 ) B i

623 161W - “HQP 002 - 39,8‘537 -

Loans ard acvances to cusiomers are stated net of orovisons of £13,874,000 (2021 £18 19S 000 1

Prepayrments and accrued noome are states ~et of crovisiors of £7735.030 (2021 £12.741.0001

No interest is charged on amourts owed by growp Jrdertakings, a8 the outstand ng Lalar<es are ursecured :
and repayatle on demard (2021 nonal.

Noie 26 details the pror pencd adiusiments :

i
:
H
i
i
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LA coron T s LT T e e e ey
Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

go00  £00C £'0060 £000

She Gk ahats Bz Ro i EFab ok atehh th AR TR D Bw A D Kot T b S B CRXAERESARA bhdfemantu wo e B VETEAT UK ERAREER S50

E jr:.L loans and overdrafts incie 16) 87,732 o ‘4‘7,386 - -
Tracle creditors 58,004 23,350 76 16
Otrer taxator and socia! securty 8,161 - - -
Other croditors 24,362 55,906 - -
Amounts due 1o retatod parhe: note 24) - - - 20203
Finanze \eases (note 16} 2,428 3147 - -
Denvatiye fnandial insirurrents (rote 21 - 143 - -
Accria's and deferred income 75,465 72,087 373 2,705

~ NN PR ) N e e ca A STy Ly N cE . N PR

Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due between one and five years £'000 £°000

Bark loars and overdraits (nore 16) 383,070 247257

Firance ieases (nore 143 5,899 6,125

Dervative fnancal instzumoers {note 22 - -
5,364 5415
394,333 258837

Cither creditors

Group
2022 2021
£000 E'00G

i TP TR IR

Amounts falling due after more than five years

ERERRRE TR

S Wi DD S B SN

Bank loans énd 0vefdraf:s note 16 . 573,416 577235
Frnance eases (note 16 24,676 24495

Daorivative financal instrurnents (note 21) - 42772
598,092 644,502

Total crediors falling due after reore than one year 992,425 903,335

Thne Cornpary ras no creditors due in greater than one year

Amcunts owed "o related parties are unsecured, nor-interest peanrg and repayable on dermand

MNote 26 detals tne pnior pened aguustrrents, ;




s
j£93

Cue between one and five yedrs

Due N more tan bya

B S Y £8P g 222 SRR e a2 TR SRR B s L Y

MENTS 30 JUNE 2022

S S R YTV OO pay

2022
£000

BRR0A NS i brmad L FI R0

87,732
383,070
573,416

1,044,218

2021
E'0C0

AR RARERRNG4S e o

47,386
247297

577235

871,518

The Company had rio bank ioa~s at

The nanx loans are secured against a
9

Cedar Enerqgy ard Infrastructdre Limitod

Elios Energy 2

Boomerang knergy Lrmitec
Daringten Foirms Soiar Farm Fy | mited

Me

‘anonatle Energy LU Lirmned

Dulacca Wo ~loidao PIY L
Elwvia liomes Lirmnited

esteq Assel Managerront Lirnited

sg

30 Jure 202z

Interest rate

& month SONIA plus LE0%
LIROR/EURIEOR plus 2.00%

3 month EURIBOK plus
1.20%. Fixed rate 1.70%

12% + 6 month EURIBOR
& month SONIA plus 1.50%

649% {swap rate of 4.59% +
19% rmargin)

& month SONIA plus 2.35%
1.7% + BBSY

5% + SONIA + 2 5% non-
utilisation fee

Fixed rate 2.5%

30,946

56,079
284,348

114,026

85,718
31,614

12,306

43

1044218

ets of the Group with each loan as held by the sugsidiary show~ belove

295,344

1024239

871518

SONIA replaces LIBDOR as the effeq:

va interbark lencirg rote system from 1 January 2022 The rae

resulted n no commerc a. impact 1o the busi—ess

Finance leases

L

Trie ‘uture mimirurn firgnce ease cayments are gs foliows

vEyrmeris cue

2022

gooo

2,428
5,899
76,461
84,788

33,003

(51.785)

change

2021

2165
6,196
72,013
81,375
(47609)
33766

~£000

re~tal rensweal or purchase option clauses =ents cayacle ncresse by local 0t

secured against the leaszed gssets.

The Corapany had no finarce lgases at 30 June 2022,
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B R TR ES TN o

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
;i‘\t 1 July 2021 20439 20,933 41,372
Increase recogrised n profit and 1oss 21 11495 11516
Increase recognised through other cormprehonsve income - 18,202 18,202
lrnpaiernent 16 - 16
Increase recogrised in fixed assors 23656 - 23656
Recognised on sabsiciary acquisitions - (3.568) {3.568)
Adjustrrent in respect of prior years - {5465) (5.465)
Unwind ng of aiscount 249 - 249
Adjustment relating o change in accounting astirmate {%,373) - (3.373)
Gain or transiation 15 ) o ) 15
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

The decommissioning provisicn is held to cover future obligat

ns 1o return land o which trere are

operational wind, biomass and solar farms, 1o ther origirat condition The amourts are not expected o be

utlised for in excess of 25 years
The Company had no provis.ons at 30 June 2022

Note 26 detals the pnior penoc adiustments,

BB s oo ab s a0 T Es

The Group and Company have the follcwing share capitat

Group 2022 2021
A![ottgy, ;allggtywp apd fully paid ) - £000 £'000
1,616.622,C11 (2021 1,496,755,258)

7
Ordinary shares of £E01G each 161,662 149,676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, ca!!gc_!:ye and fullywupaifi I ‘ E'OO‘D o B £000

L616£22011 (2021 1456,755288)
Ordinary shares of £0 10 each

161,662

145,676

During the year the Group issued 119,866,754 (2021, 1,501,19S,278 } ordinary shares of £0 10 eacn ‘or an
agqregaie nominal value of £11.987.000 (2021 £150,120.000). Cf the shares issued during the year, toal
consideratior of E202,750,000 (2021 £2,316,695.000) was pard for the shares, gving rise ©© a prermium of
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191763000 (2021 £173.118.000), During the year the Group ourchased ni. (2021 4,444,020 of s own

ordinary shares of £0.10 each with an agaregate nominal value of il (2021 5444,‘JJC Toral consideration

p\

of Frml {2021 £6. 84 UOCJ was paid for the shares, giving rise © a orerniam of £mil (2021 £6,39%,000).

Tre Lroup has adepted predecessor account ng prirciples as «t was formed as pas of a gro

reconstrucuor, tnerefore the share capital and share prerm-um account are treated as if they haa always
existed Movernents in share capitsl srising both before and afier the resractare are reported as rmovements
in the Group share cagial,

Buring the year tne Campany issuac 1,501,199,278) ordirary shares of £5.170 each for an

aggregate nominat value of £11 987 0,000; Of tne shares 1ssued during the year, total

consideraticn of £203.750.000 ¢ 021. 22,3165695,000] was paid for the shares, gr

£191.764.000 (2021 E2.1566,575,0C
re

ordinary cha

ng nse toa premiocm of
Group purchased nil (2021 4.444,020) of ts own

alvalue of £l {2021 £444 GO
of Enil (2021 £6.844,500;) was pad for the shares, grang nse 1o @ premium of Eral (202

Total considerat:on

D E£8.395.0008!

s of 20 10 each with an

~
Uy
1

—

here s a single class of ord nary snares, There are o restictors on the disriostion of divigends and the
t

recayment of capits

Cash flow hedge reserve
Tne cash fiow hedge reserve s Lsed I recora ransactions arising rom the Group's cazh flow
hedg:ing arrangements.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve anses from the difference betwesn the far value of the shares 1ssues and the boak
values of ine S‘be‘]ldia"\es acqu.res

ig

The movemrent In noqa-cortroling interesis was as follows
Group
Note 2022 2021

Group £'000 £000
AL Juby 2021 3,721 9570
fale of subsidiary urdertakrgs and acowsiig

; SICIETY LMAEHATr gR and acousiian 27 - (1842}
O Nor CO’I'.'OUFQ Imrarasi
Toral comprernersve 08y attinn fadle o

oTelcomerenans e ¢ PaolE (6,622) (4,007
NON=COntroiing ir
AUED Jure 2022 (2 901) 3721

Ghladdts
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20 oy

As at 20 June 2022

=
[
=
433
<
<
T
T
=

c contingencies across the Groap or Company

5 SN

Carrying amourts of financial a

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group £000 £'000 £’000 ‘ EUOO

o A A AR ey A € 2w T DR A A R AAREATR ¢ 1IN FEY A 06 Y BB ¢ R ST RS € B F AR R w1010 00 b ] I

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debt instrurr.ents measured at amoriised cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767

Meazcured at fa rvalue throngr pmoht and loss - 64659 - -

Carrying amount of ﬁnanciai liabilities

A

asured at amortises cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16

Measured at far value throuah other cormprehensive Incorre - 42,772 - -

Noie 26 detals the pror pennd adjustimeants
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Derivative financial instruments
Tre Grouo's firancia: r.sk management seexs G minrmise the exposure 1o market risk, credit r sk, lguidiy
and cash flow nck, and energy market risk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

Tre energy seclor s expenencing significart turbulence and there is a r sk that forecass ievels of income are
not achieved due 0 craages I wholesale eneqgy prices, off-taxe cortracts or governmen: subsidies

Changes in Government policy, or regulator intervent on may resull ir requced income streams wt
group due to additonal lev es

Currency risk

Tre Group presenits its corsoldated financa statemenis in sterling and condiucts bus ness in a numoer of
other currencies, grincipally Turo and Austrabian gollar Conseguently. the Groug is exposed to foreisn
exchange risk aue (o exchangc rate movements, which affect the Group's ransact:onal experses and the

ng ard nel assets of .15 nori-sterling operat ons

Transactional exposures

Trarsacticra. exposures anse from adrin stralve ang cther expente in cuirercies oingr than the Group's

[)

a
presentational currency (Sterdng) The Group entess in o forward fore'gn excharge contracts and f
excharge swaps to mitigate the exchange rate risk “cr certain foreign currency nayabies and rece'pts. The
forward currency contracts ard swaps are measured at farr value, whick 1 determ ned using va.uabion
weonrigues that utlse obervabie inputs The xey irputs used in valling the dervatives are th
excharge rates for GBP.AUD a~d G3PEUR On 30 June 2022 the fair vaue of the for egn CUTRnCy
contracts was an asses of £ (20210 £6,4488 000] and 3 lakilty of £n {2021 £143 030

Translational exposures
sheet trarzlatonal exposures anse o cidation on the retranslat-or of the balance sheet ©

ening operations into sterl al currency The level of exposure 15 reviewad

by ma \ag':’ﬂf""’ a~d the potential foreign an g rmcvement 1s witnin an accepiable level of risk and

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure (o 7luctuanons in 1nerest rates on is borrowirigs Where the Group enters inic

Dorrovw g arrangerrents with floatirg rate interest, a swao arrangenrent s entered into 10 fix 2 poruc of
I

the interest in oraer to mitigate against an increase inrterest rates. The oorton of mterest o oe fixed 3

2

355€53€d 0N 4 Case f‘:;y case gasic Managemenri can e.ect whether 'o redge account for these
r

1e71s on rdwvidual ransaction bas s ard ~avé

3
rate swaps 1 ne swagcs are baced on a prrc pal avount of o
O 30 June 2022 tre ouistancing interest rafe swats have a matunty In exgess oF ve years ard the far
e 4

isin an z3set posthor of £54 205 000 2027

Price risk
The Groun s a 5100 10 MediLm-term

onin e level of
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b) Credit risk
Custorner qredit riskos rmstigaied through the Groug's credit control polic’es, which are in glace 1o ensure
that cur customers have an apprepnate cred @ hisiory and are rnontored on an onge ng basis.

c} Liquidity risk

Ligl dizy «isk are rnanaged by ersunng that sufficient casn s availadle o fund contiruing and futare operations.

Ligu dity risk anses an sank i0ans in ptace across the Groug and is maraged througn carelal monioricg of
covenants ard senst ble levels of debt Borrowing s on a long-term bas's, whereas our revenue 15 receved
throughout the year, as well as interest and redemptiors on our short-term wan bock Cash fow risk s
maraged through ongaoing ¢ath flow forecasting to ensure receiots are sufficient to meet uabilines as they
fall que

- SO N NN O

t

At tre year end the Groun had capal commitments az follows

2022 2021
Group ‘ £'000 £'000
Contracted for but not orevided 1In these firantize statemeants 347 254 90,156
Undrawn facilibes on loans to borrowers 173,600 02,682

AT Z0 June the Groug had omal future minimure lease payments under non-cancellatle operating leases

as follows:

2022 2021

Land and Cther Land and Other

buildings buitdings
_ £'000 £000 - E000 £ 0G0
Mot later than one year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Later than one year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1688

Years

Later than five years 95 654 - 18,932 g
135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

The Group had no other off-balance sheat arrangements (2021 ~one).

Linder sections 3344 and 479A of the Cormganies Act 2005, the parent company Fern Trading Lirmited has
guararteed al outstanding tabriues on those companies taking the exemgtion to wnich the suos;dfames list
on pages 79 w 90 were subject to at the 30 Jure 2022 urt| they are satisfiea in full These lisbilities tota
£915m Such guarantees are enforceable against Fern “rading Limited by ary oerson to whom any such
nability is due,

The Corpary had no capital or other comrrtments at 30 Jure 2022
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2F o o s
On 21 July 2022 Fern Tradirg Development wimited [FTEL), & supsidiary of the Group, successhuily sold

;) e -~ b - - gk - Ao~ ! N con YT =
o (ST LU Soias ALIST Aash B ol R ol g% ~(1e
Carirgton Poirt kaoldeo Pty Limted to Octopus Australia Masier Trust A srea’l proft of 820,000 was made

on the sale

On the 1st of Decamper 2022, the Groug acaured nghts to a £25m credit voucher ana the ngnt to use
maobile licerses from Thres UK via g Strategic Connectvity Agreement, thus mak.rg the first step towards
beccrming an mobile virtoal network operaior

Urnger FRS 102 23 1A disciosares need rot be qiven of transactions entered rio betweern two of ma e
mebers of 3 Group, provided that sny sugsidiary whicn s a oarty to the transacucn 1s wholy owned oy

suczh a member.

Curng the year fees of £77934 500 (2021, £81.154,200) were chargeg o the Jruup oy Octopus
Investrnents timeed, a relatec party due 1o s significant mfllence over e entity, Ogwous Investments
Lmitec was recharged legal and professiona. fees totaleng £15,155 (2021 £1 CC}J by tre Group Al toe
year end, ar amaount of £5,500 2021 £215000) waz outstand.ng weich s ir C.uded n trade craditers.
he Group s entitled to a profit shate as 2 resuit of its invesiment i Terido LLY, 2 related party due to key

managerrent parsonnel N common. in 2022 a thare of profit equal to £5, 249 0035 (2021, £445,0008) nas

been recognised by the Group Al the year end, the Groug nas an interest ir the member's caoial of
accrued ncome gue of £5,274, 000 (2021 £473,0000)

35,452,000 12021 £12,002.000) and

rovided (¢ refated pardes. Regardirg

The Group engagesin lendirg activties whicn imclade opaizncesz o
es sof £62.480 000 (2020 £173,224 0C0), accrusd

ertines with <ey management personngt in Commor, og

ncome of £19.785.000 (2021 £26,205,000) a~d deferred incorme of £ (2021 £101.000) were cutstardng
at year end. Durning tne year irterest reome of £7160.000 (2022, FI7E81,000) ang fees of £394,000 (2027

£536,000) were recognised in ealion 1o these (eans

During th

tne Groun scquired 9 reserve oower ¢ ompamﬂs from companies managed by Goopus
- ¢ de .
)

Investments Limted, 2 relates party ls of the compan.es acquired

As ai 30 June 2022 £nl (2021 £2,950,2/5) waz owed to tre Comoany by Bracken Trading Limited, a related
carty by «ey management personnel in common

Cther than the rarsactions disclosed acove, the Comgany's other ‘eated party tranzactions weare wih its
who. y owned subz-dary mer-bers of tne Group.

B

- S N
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a) Group structuring review

We have conducten a review of prior years’ accounting treatment of niercompany restructunrg In trms
review management igentified unamoriised goodwill balarces nrelanon to these transactions We have
adjusted the previous years to refiect the irmplemenatior of armortisat.on backdzted (o wrer the relevant
transactions occurred, The accumulated irnpact for the goowwil armortisation i the grofit and loss for 2021

was Ld8m (2020 £5 2m) the movement of £2.7m

i3 has been restated throughowt the 2
nurnbers A summary of tne imoact of the correclion is provided below:

-~

021 comgarative

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group ‘ _ E'000 n£"0070 ] £°000
Gooowil 583988 {5.335) 578653
Retaired esrmirngs 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)

Group ) ‘ o E'QOQ £000 E‘OOO ]
Gonawil 602.711 (8,049} 594.662
Retarned camimngs 1123520) 2,049 {115.871)

As part of ihe review of the intergroup restructuring mertiored above, management identified one of tre

£

restructures had teen incorrectly accournted for in a sub secucn of the group No further errors were
discovered in the review The accumulated impact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and loss for 202
was £2. 5m {2020 £1 3rn). the movermnent of £1 2m has been restated througnout the 2021 comparative
rumbers Trs mpact 1o the 2020 opening retained earmnings was offser by £2.1m writter back against bad

debt expenses. Management have corrected the idertflad error with the foliowing imoact:
g G

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Growp R £'000 £000 E£'000
Goodgwil o 583,983 (291835 554,805
Retained earnings 41,185 899 42,084
Sebtors 842,545 (2.724) 832,825
Creditors amounts fallirg due within one year (232.813) 456 (232,317
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

~_£'000 £000 _ E000

eo e+ e e T e et A e e et 605}11 e 574;48

Retainad sarmings (123,920} (321) (124,241}
[2ebtors 600,726 (2,724) 588002
Creditors arnounts falling duc within ore year {207,318} 486 (206,822}
Fixed assets 1551170 30512 1,581,682
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b} Deferred tax adjustment

We nave conducied a review of all consolidaton eniries ar subsections of tne groun We Fave wenthed an

errcr relating @ 2015 when ceferrad tax agjustrienis ware entered as & corsoudation entry and bad

subsequantly not been reversed. We have checked the tax per subs diary account ang have ersured that the

relevant balances are correct, The error was oosted at o corcoudated level oniy and has new been correctes:

Year ended Adjustment
30 June 2020
(as stated)

Group N £'000 ‘

BT VR RS b e TN 8S KRORORERE B an e ¢ s 0 VRO OREARY S

e b saan

Rataned eamirngs 41,185 {4,764)

Crediters amounts (sl ng dus withis or e year (232.813) 4,764
Tiig has a knocx efect into June 2021, the restated palarces are a3 folows:

Year ended Adjustment
30 June 2021
{as stated)

Grqup

Retaned sarmings (123,920 (4,764]

Cred tors amounts faling dug withir sne year (207.318) 4.764

In prepanng the tax comiputauors for 2022, tne Groun's tax adveors

assumEhior In previous years tax consclidation calculations Withir tne previcusly unreco

it
assets neid wikin the groun some were avalabie on ¢ conscicated level to offser the Groug's sef

£000

Year ended
30 June 2020
(restated)

£000

3 TR 5

36421
(228,049)

Year ended
30 June 2021
{restated)

(128.684)
(202.554)

4]
it
=
@
—

i

X
lability Or anirdividual compary bazis tre deforred max in previous years hac been corracly recogrised A

part of these deferred assets are in relaticn to casr fow hedges neld wiimir the group wh ahi are accourtedg

for witben ctror comprehensve incomea. The sccur-ulatec irrpact for the tax cnarge .n the profita~d loss
for 2021 was £15m (2020 E£15 37 tre movemenrt of 200k has Leen restated throughout the 2021

comparative nurr.cers

A zummary of the impact of the corection s oroviced pelow:

Year ended Adjustment
30 June 2020
(as stated)

Group o £000 £000

Retained earnirgs 41,185 (15,299)
63,837 (2.875)

Ueferrad tax provinions (36,4584) 19,174

Year ended
30 June 2020
(restated}

£1000

25886
58,962
117,310}
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group . e _£'000 £o00 £'000
Pewiec earangs Cousen)  G509%  (39.013)
Cash f.oow hadne resene 17058 {2119} 14,579
Deferred tax provisions (28,145) 17.212 (203,953}
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group ) o B £000 £000 EOOO
Netared earings s (13,829) 27356
Goortwil: 583988 {34,517} 549,471
Gebtors 842.549 (2,724} 839,825
Fieed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,187
Deferred tax provis.ons (36,484 19,174 (17,310}
(Cash fiow hedge reserve 63,837 (3.875) 59,962
Creditors amounts faling due within one year (232.813) 5.259 {227.554}
Year ended Accumutiated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
_ £000 £000 £'000
123920, (2129) (136,049)
Gooawll 602,711 {36,010 566,700
Debtors 600,726 (2724) 588.002
Fixed assels 1551170 30,512 1.581.682
Deferred tax provisions (28,145} 17.212 {20,933}
Cash fow hedge reserve 17,098 12,119) 14,875
Creditors amncunts falling dus within one year (207.318) 5259 (202,052
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a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 july 2021, the Group acgurred 9 reserve power sies througn the purchase of 10C% of the share capital
for consiaeration of £18

Tne foilowing tabies surmmanse tne consideration paid by the Group tre far vaue of the asse's acguired,
and e lailties assumed at the acquisidon date.

C

ideration £'000

Total consideration -

Detals of the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill arsing are as follows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 | £000 €000

Fread sssats o Teo7ss  eessm 52235
Trace and other recenabies 294 - 294
Prepayrments 635 - 635

Cath ana cash equovalents 7.858 - 7858
Tradde and other crecitors (2.206] - (2,206)

2.8 553 (28,553) o -

'!"otal consuderatlon -

Goodwill resuling frorm the buuress combiration was 7l

Tre consoldated stat

ement of colrprehens ve income for e year inciudes £45 805,000 revenue and a
profir after tax of £€86.0

IS
S0 in respect of this acquisitor

A VRER IRt ot e v e D 7 %R SO GAMMee HAdMROERGRN RN L 6 B 47 XTI v

(e8.816) - _158.818)
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 Cotober 2021, the Groug acqgured Doveryard Limited and its subsiciary throwgh the purchase of
100% of the share capital for consideration of £23,414,000

The following tables summarise thie conaideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acguired, and

habilisies assumed at the acguisition date

Consideration ‘ ’ o £006

Cazh 12.377
Drrectly atrinutable coss 1037

Tofal consideration ) W13,414

Details of the fair value of the ret gssets acquired and gooow L arising are as foliows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
e et o o o e et E000 £000 00
Trade and ciner rece-vables 52 - 52

- 193

- (467)

Prepavments and accrued income

ar

Trade and ot

1ors

Net assets acquired

Goodwid

Totarl éonsidératian 13,414

Goodwil, resulting from the business combination was £13,067.C00 and has an estumated useful life of 25
years, reflecting the Hfespar of the assets acquired

The consclidated statement of comorehensive income for the year includes E£nil of revenue and a loss
before fax of £123.000 i respect of trus acquisition.
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c) Dulacca acquisition

On 27 Auguest 2021, the Group acquired Dulacca WF Holdzo PTY Lid anc s taree sussidianes through the
purchase of 100% of the share capal for consideraz on of £115,680.000

Tre folluwing tables summanse the consigeration paid oy the Groug, tne “a r value of the assets acquired,
and the Labilites assume at e acqu'siton date A list of the entities acquired mcludes ir nota 29

Consnderat;on ] ] AU?:POO ExchangeRate £'000 ;
(‘;h At cmens 5 s s et AR e 2 i 7 - 18964 s ‘
Directly attnbutable costs 1 126 18904 565

Total consideration - S 213 683 S 115680

Detals of the fair value of the net assets acquired and inangibie arisng are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair ;
values value values value ]
. o AUD'OOOM N .&UD'OOO ) AUD'ODO o £000 __E000 '000

“Fkn\e:ﬁ N SRR “:‘0’76&3 e 107635‘ m,.56937V ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 56m .
Trade and other recevables 10,131 - 10,131 5,35 - 5357 |
Cast and cash squivalents 163,072 - 103,072 54525 - 54,525
Ac and deferred neome. 10, 952) - (10 952] (5,795} - (5,793}
Net assets acquired " 200884 - 200884 1026 - 111026 j
{I”Taﬂglb h - T 8 799 o T V o 4 J\)4V V i

Totalconsnderatmn - T 218,683‘ S 115 GBOW

Intangibles resultng from he asset purcrase was £4,654 500 and nas an estimaied ucefut ife of 30 years, ;
reflecting tre lfespan of the assets acauirec

Tre conscldated staternent of comprarensive noome for the year incluges Eqil of reverue and a loss after

tax of £237.0030 in respect of this acquisitor
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2022, the Group acqured Zestec Asset Mangemernt Limitad a project sources for rooftop
solar, through the purchase of 1C0% of the share capital for cons:deration of £4,76%,000.

Tne following tables summarnse the consideration pawd by the Growp, the fair value of szsets acquired, and
uabiiities assumed at the acquisition date.

Consideration £000

o i i b o endawae n Taa YPEY OO SNERS wuMEYD Rk Bimeng RERYE b ST X7 oRRERLFREBE B pn TR By BESEATR R PRR S R h S n e o e T DAY 7R TR (DN PAR AN RAD ST SRR ne

Cash 3672
Ceferred consideration -
Cirectly atirbutable costs 1093

Total consideration " a765

Detzils of the farr value of the net assets acquired and gooawill arising are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value
. e b e i £000 .. Eo00 £'000
Trade and other crediions (574) - (574)

“rade ang other recewanles 400 400
Cash and cash squiva.onts 1019 - 1.018
{4} - (46)
Net assets a;:quired S S 955— S 955

Total consmeratior.l" . 4,765

Cther loans

Goodval resulting from the busiress combination was £2,810,000 and has an estimated usefut life of 10
years, reflecting the estimated lifespan of the assets acgusred.

The consclidated staternent of comprehensive income for the year includes E158,0C0 of revenue and & loss
tefors tax of £494 000 1= respec: of this acquaisition.
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e) Elivia Homes acquisition
O 2% May 2022, the Group acquaired Zlvia soidings Limited ang its sussic 5. through e curchase o
10C% of the shiare capital for conzideration of £231,6%4 C00

w2

Trie folowing tables summarse the consideranon pad by the Group, the “ar value of assels a
Fabdities gssumed at the acausit:on date A sy of the ennties acqgured a7e noluded in note 29,
Consideration £°000
R+ et 5 TR S ARSI AR e N RS s, SR sans© TASCRnc | %R € PRI ke 5 SR e 8 R 8 RSO
Cash 30,999

Directly atinbutabie co

Total consuderatlon A 31 684

Cetals of the fair valus of the net assets acguired and goodwill ansing are as fodows

Book Adjustments Fair
values vatue
€000 €000 €000

418 - 418
asyets 1.767 - 11.767
69,939 - 69,939
frade and clirer gebtors 2,609 - 2,609
Cash ang cash aguvalents 11,603 - 11,603
ACCILals snd ceferrad yicormea {(420) - {420}
Frovisicns (930} - (B30}
Deferred tax 6,000 (1400} 4600

31, 533 - (140_0) - 30 133

{JQ d‘fvht 1.)51
Total cons:deratlon 31 684
Goodwill resultng from tne business comonaton was £ 551000 and nas an estimated useful Ufe of 10

vears, reflecting tne lfescan of the assets acquire.

The consctdatea statement of CO"Pp'EhPﬁSw e rcome for the year nclices reverue of £25034,208 and
prott pefore tax oF E1 502 000 1~ respect ¢° tus acgusiuon
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Our reported results are pregared in accordarce witn United Kngdom Accounting Standards, ncuding
Financial Reporting Standard 102, as detailed in the Finarcial Statements startirg on page 35 of the Annual
Report In measunng our performance, the financial measures that we use include those that have been
denved from our reported results ir order B eliminate “actors thal d stort year-cn-year comparisons Trese
are considered non- GAAP Snancial measares

Net debt
We provide net debl in addition o cash and gross debt as a way of assecsing our overall cash pesivon and 1

s corputea as follows.

2022 2021
Note £'000 £000

N U S S S LRt R ET TR SHIEIMNNIPIVNPUIPPIES JE ST SN PSS . o ERETR R BRI S pRR S M i

Bans loans ard cuardrafts 16 1,044,218 871,918
[ '764 -
Gross debt 1,049,582 871,918
Casn & bank ard in hand 1% (256,415} 1172 478)

Net debt ST T T 993067 699,440

Qthicr loans
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA
Earnings pefore i~terest, tax, deprecaton and amartsat an UEBIT DA is calculated by adjusting proht after
tax for interest, tax, deprecaron and amortisaton, in additior to ncome ana expenses that do rot reate to

~r

the day to day cperatere of the Group We provide EBITDA in addit.on to prohit after tax as i1 sllows us 1o

gssess our performance witncut the effects of financing anc capital exgerditures

The foilowing table deaiis e adjustments made o the reported rasuts,

{restated)
2022 2021
Note £000 £000

Profit/{loss) for the financial year 31,310 {31,012

Add

TR % CUHRanec? Piskatas’ S49hcea,

Arrortisanon of mangiie aswets 37.848 37704
7913 -
101,802 84,697

33554 36.067

Impairrnent of INtargibie assers

Depreciation of tangible assers

oo e

Irtersct pavable and smdar expaenses

Ercepuonat tems 1,105 -
Tax 7 16,294 8.249

L05S

Incorme frorn other hxes atget rvestments {5,249) {449)
Share of aperat'ng praitin jomt veriture - {1,755}
Froft on dispaosat of subsidianes (29,532) (28.568)
Irtorest receivable ard similar neorme S {130} 997)

EBITDA i ' 194,916 104,036

K

Note 26 details tne prior per od adjustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
£F Lo 0 g

Dewsls of the subsizary undertakings are as follows,

Country of Class of Principat
Name o COTROTation  shares | Holding activity o
AbboJFprtﬁSctar Eﬁérgy Haolding Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ada.rdsa Sciar SPV 1 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Agrisol-2 SARL! France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Al Nvetweorks Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Allpoints Tibre Lirmited®” UK Ordinary  100% ;irZ'SUZT:;O'R
Aucnencarroch Erergy Limerag®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Auguhirie Land Corrpany Limied™™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Avenue Solar Farm Limiten”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury Power simited” UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Bausolare § SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bassolarre 7 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beetley Energy Limted” UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
Beighto~i Ernergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Beinnewr Wind Farmr Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Belihcuse Energy Limitea”™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Estate Solar Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Solar Farm Lirnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Lirnitaed UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bratton Flerming Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Solar Liruted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
E?rf;;r;)dyﬂ Solar Deveioprmernts Holainas UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Odyn Solar Devetopments Limitec™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Lroited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ca cias Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirnited® Ireland Ordinary 100% Frergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
- incorporation _shares !
i Sf lar Fafm Lirmitec™ UK Crdinary
Cathkn Erergy Limitea®” UK Ordinary
Causigey Limiteg UK Ordinary
Cedar Erergy a1z 'nfrastructure L mited UK Ordinary
CESE Berceronre SARLT France Ordinary
;ertra%e ‘Eo'! e\r‘wrjwe de Producucn d' Srerqie ae France Ordinary
Granahois SARL
TESE de [a Salesse SARLT France Ordinary
=B de Lacomipe {Centrale Eoilienne ce .
Froduction o Enrge de arombel Sare FONS Orcinary
CEPE de Marsanne SARLT France Ordinary
CEPE Haut du Saute’ France Ordinary
CESE de lg Rocne Quatre Rv.eres SARLY France Ordinary
CEPE du pays de 3t Seine 2ARLT France Ordinary
CERSSAS France Ordinary
Creisor Meadow Ernergy Limited” UK Ordinary
Crisbor So.ar Farrm Holdings Lireited™ UK Crdinary
Chittenng Solar Two Limited™ UK Crrdinary
Cilgwyn Energy Limited” UK Ordmary
Clann Farrm Lmiten ™ UK Qrdinary
Clararmmond Safar SPY 1 Limied™ UK Ordinary
CLP Devencnments Limited” UK Ordinary
LR Ervirngas Limited™ 9]¢ Ordinary
CLP Services Lirmited’ UK Qrdinary
CUoE 1990 Lmined” UK Ordinary
CLPE 1999 Liritea™ UK Ordinary
C_=z Aoiorgs Larnied ] Ordinary
CLPE Proecis 1 Limied UK Ordinary
C =2 Srgects 2 Limited LUK Crdinary
(CLPE Proiects 3 Lmrieu UK Ordinary
C_Pz RCC -I tim:eq UK Ordinary
CLPE R3O0 - 2 Lmites UK Ordinary
C_ %2 ROC -3 Limyten” UK Ordinary

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

-,

Eriergy ger eration
Energy generation
Energy generation

clding company

Energy generation
Energy génerahon
Erergy generation
Energy gereration

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generat:on
Holdmg comparny
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of OaM
services

Dormant company
Bormant company
Holding company
Hclding company
Holding company
Holding company
Heolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

CLPE ROC - ZA Limited”

CLPE ROC - 4 umited”

CILPE ROC — <A Limited™

Ciyne 2ower Limuted”

Colsterwortn Energy Limited”
Connon Bricge Erergy Limited™
Cotesbach Energy _mited”™

Cour Wird Farm (Scatianal L mited

Crapreli Farm L mited”

Crayfern Homes [Scuth Caast) Linuted?®!
Crayfern Limited®?

Crayfern Sunley (Sinfo d) Limited*!

Craymarsh Limited™

Cressirg Solar Farrn Limited”

Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Power Limited”™

Cafer: Reserve Powser Lirmited”

Dary House Salar Limsted™

Deepdale Farm Solar Limited™
Doveryard Limited™

Crapers Farm Limited™”

Dulacca Enargy Project Co PTY Lid*?
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Lrd!?
Culacca Energy Project Holdco Co PTY Ltg?’
Dulacca WF Holdeo PTY Ltg®

Cryffryn Brodyn Limited”

Eakrirg Limited™

Elecsol Camargue SARL?

Elecsot France 7 SARLY

Elecsol France 11 SARL®

Elecsol France 15 SARLY

Elecsol France 19 SARL?

Country of

incorporation

ety TR A R S 0 8 R T B R AR EAD B ) n Hd vh o D T REAVRT ugnem

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
Uic
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

LIK
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
UK

UK
France
France
France
France

France

Class of
shares

Holding

Principat
activity o

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Orrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Grdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
Q0%

S0%

100%
100%

Energy geﬁeration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Development of
buitding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Heolding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

SPS——
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

LTINS

PRV PRV L P ECCRTIE oo

Elecsol France 22 SARL*

Elecso. France 24 SARL?

Elecsc: France 25 SARL?

Clecso! France 28 SARL?

Elecsol France 41 SARL?

Elios
Efos
Elios
Elios
Elios
Etog

Flics

Elvia

Elvia

Elvia

Ebvia

Eliva

Elivia

Eiivia

Eliva

Elivia

Eivia

Euvig O

Slvia

o Hau: var SARL?

Energy 2 france SAS
Energy 2 Lim-ted

Energy 3 France SAZY
Energy Holoings 2 Limated™
Energy Heldings 3 Limited™
Enargy Hoidings oimited™
Renewable Energy Lirm'ted”

Develcpmert Fnance amited!”

Soidings Limted

Fomes (Centraly Limited !
Homes (Dorant 25 Limiteg®™
Hornes (Grange Road) Limited™!
Homes (Netey) Limtea®
Fomes (Southern) Limitegtt
—omes (Surblion! Larited!s

L : 1L
Fomes Limnided

mork Lire teds?

Country of Class of Principat
incqrporation shareim leding i;wtivityV .
France Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
France Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 160% Hetding company
France Ordinary 100% Holding comipany
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
. Ao Construction of
LK ©ordinary 100% domestic buildings
Crdinary Financial services
UK Deterred 100% AN
holding companies
Preference
. . Construction of
UK Crainary 100% domestic bulldings
. Construction of
- o,
UK Ordinary 100% dornestic buildings
. o Construction of
UK Ordinary 100% domestic bulldings
. Development of
0% ‘ ‘
UK Ordinary 100% building projects
. . Construction of
UK Qrdinary 100% domestic buildings
‘ N Construction of
UK Qrdinary 100% domestic buildings
. Development of
UK Ordnary 100% building projects
. Development of
srdir Co% ‘
LUK Crdinary 100% bullding projects
Construction of
. domestic buldings
[ : 4 4 G’J =
K Qrdinary 100% Buyirg and seling of
own real estate
t
UK Crdinary 1002 Construction of

domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Eivia Southern Lirmited!!
Eiicambe Limited™
Erergy Power Resources Limited”

EPR Ely Limiegd™

EPR Eye _mited”

EPR Glanford Limiteg”™

EPR Renewsble Energy Limited”
EFR Scotland Limited™”

EPR Thetford Lirmuted”

Eucalyptus Energy Holdings Limited™

Eucslyptus Energy Lirrited™

Feltwall Ene-gy Limited”™

Fern Erergy Cour Holdings Limited™

Fern Energy Holdings Lim-ted”

Fern Energy Limied”

Fern Energy Wind Holdings Limited™

Fern Fibre Lirnited™

Fern Healthcare Heldirgs Limited™
Fern Infrastructure Limited™

Fern Rerewable Energy Limited™
Fern Reoftop Solar (A) Limitea™

Fern Rooftop Solar (B8O

Fern Rooftop Solar (Zestez) Limited™

Ferr: Trad-rg Developrert Limited”

Fern Traa.niq Group Limited

Fern UK Power Developments L'mited™

Fibrophos Limited™
Four Burrows Lirmted”

Fraisthiorpe Wnd Farr Uimited™

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity
B st Constructo ; O} —
5 Cranary o0 oTEAC b
own real eztate
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
UK Ordirary 100% iﬂ?;igg;:z:; and
services
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Uiz Ordinary 100% Helding cornpany
UK GCrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
K Ordinary 100% Haolding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Helding cormpany
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK UK 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name . S ..incorporation shares ~  Helding activity e e
o UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Gigaret Fibre Ltd™ LUK Ordinary 100% Elgsuletggork
Giganet Lirted” UK Crdinary 100% ;b@rjuz(—;t&ork
Glerichamber Wird Energy Limited " UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Grange Winad Farm bimited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Guardbride SP. z.c.0} Potand QOrdinary 100% Erergy generation
Haroocurne Power Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker (Mount My Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Hayrmaker (Natewood) —Hoidings Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Hayrmaker (MNatewoaod) _td” LK Ordinary 160% Energy generaticn
Hayrmaker (Oakiards) Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Haymaker (Oaxiards) Lid™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generaticon
Helm Power 2 Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding comripany
Helm Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Higher Knapp “arm Lmuted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hill Erd Farm _imited” K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hollamoor Limrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hull Reserve Power Liruted” Ux Ordinary 100% Energy genreraticn
Mursit SPYV 1L mited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Immingtar Powsr Limited'™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Irweh Power Lired™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jarmescn KEoad Eqergy Lamited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jurgssic Fibre Acldings Limitea’™ UK Crdinary 90% Holding company
Surees:c Ribre imited UK Qrdinary 90% ;‘gguﬁfg}ork
Kiln Power Lim tad” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Larigar Power Lim ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lentam Solar _rmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Littie T So.ar Lired” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Littleton Sciar Farm Limired™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lt Commun cat ons Lad™ UK Ordinary  100%  Pre network

production

Ledoon Powser imsec” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat
Name e ot oo MOTpOTation  shares Holding activity
Lovedean Liruted™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Lurninance Soar Lirnsted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
M12 Sciuncns Limnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Manston Thotne Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
March Encrgy Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Marden Power Limted" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marley Thatcn Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadaows Farm Lirnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melbourn Solar Lurited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Meiton LG Energy Limited”™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Aeiton LG Holding Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meiton LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% ?;ﬁ;fﬁ;mg
Meiton Renewable Znergy (Holdingz] Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melten Renewsable Energy New<o Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewsble Znergy UK Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MALHL Farm Sotar Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Mingay Farm Holding Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MEF Decoy Ltd” UK Ordinary 1006% Energy generation
MSP Strete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Tregasscw Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Hatchlands Solar Lid™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
MNevern Power Limited"™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
News Row Farm Lirited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Newsards Solar Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Ninng Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
North Perrott Fruit Fasm Limed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Northwich Power Limeted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Notos Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ggrnore Power _mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Lirteat™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashforg Heatthicare Limited UK Ordinary  89% E ;C;‘(t*;f;gsewms
One Hatfield Hospital Limited UK Ordinary S0% Frovision of

healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Parc.ait Limired™

N

el

Country of Class of Principat
i & vincorporation shares Holding vagtivity
One Healtncare Partners Limited LK Ordinary 85% Holding company
Orta Wedgehit Solar Holdirgs Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crta Wedgenil Solar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Palfreys Barton Lrated™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Parciau Holoings L mited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Park BEroadbard smited” LK Ordinary 100% Fibre network
production
Pearmrat Soar 2 Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 1C00% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Pyims Lane Solar Lic™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Leens Park Road Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat'on
. cryices §
Ranseford Care Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Cafe SETVICES TOr 3
retirement village
Rangeford Chertsey Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Retlremenrt vilage
developrnant
Rangeford Crencester Limites” UK Ordinary 100% Retirernent village
=z development
Rangaford Darking Limited” UK Ordinary  100%  Lorement vilage
=z development
Rgngeford =odings Lm.ied” UK Orcinary 1G0% Holding company
‘ e ‘ Reti ent village
Rangeferd Pickenng Lirnited’ UK Ordinary 100% e.tlrempn village
developmerit
Rangeford RAD Lirrted” UK Crdinary 100% Retirement village
development
Rangeford Retirement Living Holdings Lid™ UK Ordinary 1C0% Holding company
. ] i tvilla
Fargetord Staclelord _mited” UK Ordinary 100% Retirerent village
development
Reaches rar Lirited UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Redlake Powsr Limites UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Rysior Bstate Limmived UK Ordinary 100% £nergy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
selby Power Dmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Orginary  100%  Oré network

production

g R s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of

Name incorporation shares Holding
Singrug Holdings Limtea™ UK Ordinary 160%
Singrug Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Six Hills Lane [Ragda'e) Lirrsteg™ UK Crdinary 100%
Skeloroake Snergy Lumited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Slangrieyele Lirrled” ole Ordinary 100%
Snetterton Renewable Power Fuels Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Snetterton [enewable Power Heldings Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100%
tnetterton Renewable Powe: Lamited” UK Ordinary 100%
Solarfl LPCS SARL® France Ordinary 100%
Solarf SPO1 SARLY France Ordmnary 100%
Solarfi SPOz SARL? France Ordinary 100%
Solarf SPO4 SARL? France Ordinary 100%
Sclarh SPOS SARLY France Ordinary 100%
Sclarfl SP08 SARLS France Ordinary 100%
Solarfl SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 10G%
Southcaombe Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100%
S1 Asaph Power Limited™” UK Qrdinary 100%
Sweadfast Parkirouse Solar L mited”™ LK Crdinary 100%
Steadfast Rudge Solar Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100%
Steadfast Shipton Belinger Solar Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 160%
Stellar Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 160%
Stoneyhill Energy Limited® LK Ordinary 100%
Sutis Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 160%
Surnmerston Energy Lirmiiad®” UK Crdinary 100%
Suniey Crayfern Lavant LLP!* UK NA 50%
Swish Fipre Contracting Lirrsted® UK Ordinary 100%
Swish Fiore Limited® UK Ordinary 80%
Swith Figre Networks Lig® UK Crdinary 100%
Swish Fibre Services _irnited® UK Ordinary 80%
Sywash Fire Yorksnire® UK Ordinary 100%
Swish Trading Lirriteg™ UK Ordinary 80%

Principal
activity

e S e 6 B A

Holding company
Erergy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Fnergy generation

Supply of biormass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generaticon
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company
Holding company
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
production

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Fibre nebwork
production

Fibre network
production

Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

TGO Sotar 102 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGO Solar 107 Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
THC Solar 68 imited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGC Sclar 83 Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
The fern Power Company Lirmited™ LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
The Hoiies Sclar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Thorespy Estate (Budoy) Lirmed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tilingharm Fowwer | imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Todhilis Energy Limsted” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tredown Farm Lireited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Turves Solar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereraticn
UKSE 15 Zoar Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Uritea Mines Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
VOSE Lid” UK Ordinary  100% ;g;ﬁg’ﬂm
victoria Solar Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
viners Enargy Lim rec UK Qrdinary 100% Hclding company
Vitrify Lirriten™ UK Ordinary  100% ;'rborsulfg‘;o’k
voltafrance G1 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance G5 SARLY France Ordinary 1007% Energy gereration
voltafrance 13 SARL! France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
vorboss bimited” UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
yorboss 1S Ing? USA Ordinary 100% grtgsurﬁg‘;@m
Wwadzaic< Green Limited” UK Ordinary 100% iggigfnt vilage
Wadswicy Gresen Property Serazes enped” (8134 Grdinary 10G% 22;?;?;;?;?6
Warnnglor Power Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Water oo Solar Park ~oldirgs Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Waterioo Sclar Pere Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generat.on
Weekl Faran 2 Limued” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
westwood Power Limaed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Wasiwood Solar Lirmed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name

o T B RSN TS PR B 0t KR ERREEES WRE Nkt +h 6B A b8 it

Wetrerden Energy Limited”
Wharf Power Limmiteq™

Whiddon Farm Lirmited™

whinrey mil Energy dirmited”
Wircele Soar Holdings Limred”
Wolverhiampton Powsr L™
Wryge Croft Wird Farre L mited™™”

WSE Bradford Limvad”

WSE Hullavirgton Hotdings wmited™

WSE Huilavington Limited™
WSE Park Wall Limited™
WSE Pyde Drove Limited”

Zestec Asset Managernent Lirmcted™

Country of Class of
incorporation  shares
UK Ww\érdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%
1006%
100G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation

K eEG K HGRET A REERE R DS bbb e o 40 € TR R KA AR 0 K

Acquired after year end

T B B A R D R 5 bk o B Y R

Fern Rocftop Sclar (38
Cuckoo Internet Lid
Vot Digital Limited
<0h Limited

dn

bt N e A T G F o b g

Dqte

09/08/202

31/08/2022
13/07/2022
22/11/2022

2mon

SN

L TaTats

Subsidiaries exempt from audit by victua of 34804 of the Companies Act 2006
“Sungdianes exemipt from audit oy wrtue of s4/98 of the Compares Act 2006




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dissolved or sold during the year and up until signing ) N . Dale )
Ridge Wind Acquisiton Lirnited 20/07/2021
Fern Erergy RiggeWind Acqusitians Linmited 14/63/2021
Fera Energy RingeWWind Holdngs Limiten 21/05/2021
Fern Energy Parmerships Holdings wmited 21/09/2021
Fraistharpe (Howhng) Lirmited 29/03/2022
DY Cighall Energy Recovery Limited 13/089/2022
CommZl Lid 15/08/2022
Carlngten Poimt Holaco Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Darlington Point Soler Farm Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Dariington Powrt Subnoldce Py Limited 08/07/2022
Norgic Power Developmert Limites 23112/2021
Voyninkandas Wird Farm GOy 2312/2021
Saunamas W.nd Farm Oy 23/12/2G21

—d

egisterad office of ali cormpanies listed apove s at 6th Floor, 32 Holoorn. London. tngland, CTIN 2HT

excepl for those set aul below

LUl Grzybowska 2/23, 03-131, Warsaw, Po.and

7. Pirsent Masons LLE Ca Square, 58 Morrsor Street, Edinburgh, Scotland, B3 8BP
3. 1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1AP

A 22 rug Alphcrse de Neuville, 75017 Paris, France

T 6tn Floor 2 Grard Canal Squars, Dubtier 2, RC2 A342, irelard
6. The Carriage kouse, Station works, Staticn Road, Claverdon, Warwicksmire, Unitea K ngdom, CV35 8FE
7 Zone industriele de Courtne 115 Rue Du Moureiet 84000 Avigron, France

8 13 Zashuwy Pace, London, £agland, Wi 18]

-1

he Corporatior Trust Company, Corocration Trust Center, 1209 Orange Streat, Wilm ngror 19801

10 4t Foor Sadire Courr, 20 Caste Terrace, tdinburgh, Scotama, EHL 22h

11 Apollo House, Mercury Pack Wycomoe Lane, Wooburm Green, High Wycorie, England, HPLO Ok
120 Level 33 101 Col s Streer, Melbourne, Victona, 3000, Austrata

13 Beaufort Caurt, Zgg Farm Lane, Kings _angley, —fertforasrnire Wo4 2R

24 7-3 Sratford Pace, Lonaon, Engiand, Wi1C 14Y

The dractars begave trat the carrying vaius of the investments 15 sepperted by thelr urderyng net assets



51 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)
Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

Ferr Tracing Limitad 1s an unihsted company. Every month, our Board of Direciors agrees a prce at which it
vl he willng o 1ssue new shares The share crice is unaudited.

The figures below miclude the share orice of the previcus parent (now Ferr Trading Group Limted) as well
as this entity

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited
19
18
17 /
16 .

MM
L5 N M
e W
14 M

S
13 MM
e
12 J—
I
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Perfarrmance 15 calculated pased on the sale prce for Fern's snares at 2 June each year Tne share price s

-~

not subject to audit by Ernst & Young LLP
Annual discrate parformancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

s e T G B st 8w Sl b aF Bt ko KFR 0 FW PETRD L SEEDT TR

June 2021-22 9.91%
June 2020-21 4.87%
June 2(19-20 0.33%

June 2018-1% 6.23%

June 201718 105%

Jure 201617 .  ss4%

June 2015-16 - - 3;83%

uumepol/,lg O OO 398% I
June 2013-14 3.72%

June 2012-13 o ‘ 3.97%

June 20117‘12 1.62%

g e Bieman ke . R T e ST

Source Ooiopus Investrnents Limited, 2 June 2072




Directors and advisers

Directors

FS Latham

Registered office

)]

th Floor, 24 bolzorn,
Loncoo, Englanc ECIN 2HT

2C Bariow
T Arthur lappomtaed 1 Juiy

™
™

indepancent auditors

Company seorelary

Cctopus Company Secreianal Services L mitad

Company number

12601636

Forward-looking statements

This Arnnual Report cortans certarr forward-icoxing staiements reiatec to the Compary's future busness
ard Ninarclal perforrmance and future events or developments Thasé statements are pased on the Current

ce
knowledge and expectations of “naragement ang are :

E o Aassumpions, risks and uncerta ntigs, some

of which are relateg to factors that are beyerd re ;umrc‘ of the Corapany. Ar_corciﬂgly‘ NG assurarca can
be given that any particular expectation will be met and forward-looking statéments regardimg nast rends or
activities should not be aken 25 a representat on trat suc rends o acthvites will continue In the futura Past
perforrance cannot be reliec o as a guide 1o fulure performarce Nothing in thrs Annual Report shoud te

corstrued az a orofit f’c*ecas:‘




